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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERHE

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”), | present to you the
audited consolidated final results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
recorded turnover and loss attributable to the shareholders of
HK$165,041,000 (2012: HK$190,974,000) and HK$10,180,000
(2012 profit: HK$43,717,000) respectively. The board does not
recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
March 2013 (2012: Nil).

The loss for the year ended 2013 was mainly due to decrease in
gross profit to HK$29,010,000 which is resulted by a write down of
inventories value amounted to some HK$15,058,000 and decrease
in unit sales; impairment loss on intangible assets of HK$49,928,000;
gain on change in fair value of convertible loan notes of
HK$24,031,000; administrative expenses of HK$21,769,000; selling
and distribution expenses of HK$1,126,000; and income tax credit
of HK$6,803,000.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Group continued to
focus on resources development business, in order to meet market
demand and match up China’s 12th Five Year Plan (“12th Five Year
Plan”).

During the financial year, the global economy was featured with a
slow pace of recovery, whereas China’s economy exhibited a slowed
down rate of growth. Changes in both macroeconomic conditions
and coal supply and demand within and outside China had resulted
in falls in local coal demand and negative impacts on coal prices,
thus putting the operation of the Group under greater pressure.
Yet, we managed to maintain steady business development on the
whole given that our management team had taken active measures
to cope with the situation through adjustment of business strategy,
rectification of production plan, and strict control over costs and
expenses.

Looking ahead to the coming year, while the global economy will
recover at a slow pace, China’s economy will continue to grow
at a relatively faster pace. According to the World Bank’s report
dated 12 June 2013, the global economic growth is expected to
stand at a rate of 2.2%, while China’s economic growth is expected
to reach a rate of 7.7%. Under the backdrop of complex, highly
variable situations of the economic recovery around the world, the
Group will continue to carve out a firm foothold in its resources
business, and to benefit from China’s sustainable economic growth.
In line with China’s 12th Five Year Plan, the Group will play an
active part in supporting the environmental plans of the Chinese
local governments, in an effort to make contributions to China’s
environmental protection and air quality enhancement.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT xE#H &

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

The Group owns 100% equity interest in a company with mining
interests and selling rights of coal in Xinjiang Autonomous Region,
China. The mining resources wholly-owned by the Group include
(i) the mining rights of Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine (“Kaiyuan Mine”)
located in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, the PRC, which
has estimated proved coal reserves and estimated probable coal
reserves of approximately 14,430,000 tones and 4,580,000 tones
as at 31 March 2012 respectively, and (ii) the exploration rights of
Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine located in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region, the PRC, which has estimated measured coal resources of
56,580,000 tones as at 31 March 2012.

On 21 March 2012, the Company made an announcement relating
to the Management Restructuring Plan (“Restructuring Plan”) being
proposed by the People’s Government of Mulei Kazak Autonomous
County (“Mulei County”) to the Administrative Bureau of Coal Industry
of Changji Prefecture (“Changji Prefecture”). In the Restructuring
Plan, as detailed in the announcement, Mulei County proposed an
increase of 2.962 km square, a 2.5 times increase in mining area to
Kaiyuan Mine. The above proposal is subject to further approval from
the People’s Government of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region. We
are optimistic about the process and are ready to exploit the coal
resources once the approval is sought.

Benefiting from China’s economic development, the 12th Five Year
Plan and the Chinese government’s policy in developing the Western
Region, as always, we will endeavour to achieve our goal of bringing
maximum values for shareholders by strengthening management,
controlling costs, exploring new markets, and seeking for investment
opportunities.

APPRECIATION

| wish to thank my fellow directors, management and staff for their
unrelentless efforts for the business development of the Company.
On behalf of the Board, | express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees and business
partners for their continuing support of the Company.

By order of the Board

Lo Fong Hung
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

=1 2 5 5 AL 573 ¥

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$165,041,000
for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$190,974,000). It
represents a decrease of approximately HK$25,933,000 or 13.58%
as compared with last year.

The decrease was due to decrease in market demand.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013 was decreased to approximately HK$29,010,000 (2012:
HK$45,566,000). This was mainly due to a write down of inventories
to net realizable value amounted to HK$15,058,000 was recognized
during the year.

Loss for the year

Loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 was
approximately HK$10,180,000 (2012: profit approximately
HK$43,717,000). This was mainly due to the reduction of gross
profit, impairment loss of intangible assets, and change in fair value
of the convertible loan notes.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segment

The performance of each of the Group’s business segment for the
year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements and are summarised below:

Coal Mine Business

Coal Mine Division is the sole business division of the Group at
present. The Division contributed a turnover of HK$165,041,000 for
year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$190,974,000) and represents
13.58% decreased as compared with 2012. The decrease in
turnover is resulted by weak market demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE B sk 24T

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Mine Sales and Production

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group sold 1.52 million
tones to have the total sales income HK$165,041,000. Details of
coal sales in tones are listed in the below tables.

PEER(E)

BEHEREE
HE-ZT—=F=A=t—HItEE K
EEEH12ABMER  BEERAE
165,041,00058 7T © AMEEt 2 iR i E B
BT -

Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HLEFE

Coal sales

Coal Sales (tones) and Percentage of Coal Sales

2,538,603
tonesliE

BRRHE () RRRFER L

Coal Sales
in %
HRHE
Btk

Coal Sales
(tones)

BREE
(W)

Large Coal R
Middle Coal R R
Nucleus Coal iz
Slack Coal R
Total Sales IHEME

Reserves and Resources

The Group owns one mining right and one exploration right in the
Xinjiang, PRC including Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine and Zexu Open
Pit Coal Mine respectively. The coal reserve remaining of Kaiyuan
Mine was 13.96 million tones as at 31 March 2013 (2012: 16.46
million tones). Coal extracted during the year is around 2.50 million
tones. The exploration permit of Zexu Mine will expire on 20 February
2014, full impairment of this intangible asset has been made in the
financial year. The following tables are the estimated coal reserves
for the Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine and estimated coal resources for
the Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine Exploration Right area as at the year
2010 conducted by John T. Boyd Company in June 2010.

Coal Reserve as at 31 March 2013 = Coal Reserve as at 31 March
2012 — amount of coal extracted (the “Coal Extracts”) by the Group
during 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013.

17.25
20.43
25.19
37.13

100.00
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reserves and Resources (continued)
Estimated coal reserves for the Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine are:

Average Mineable
Seam Thickness (m)

2EER ()
HEREE(H)
HURBE RS 2 (bt R8I T -

Marketable Reserves (tones-millions)
As of 31 March 2010

AR E AERFE(EEBM)
EHEE(CK) BE-Z—ZH=H=1+—8H
Total (Coal/Parting) Proved Probable Total % of Total
L4t
Seam Bench p=] HMIREBKRE) BE SR wEt Btk
North of Current Pit
(Potentially Oxidized)
REB AL (B seEt)
B, B, 13.1 - 4.58 4.58 100.00
Mine Plan Area
TR EEE
B, B, 10.8 LI - B 25.00
B, B, 19.6 10.86 - 10.86 75.00
14.43 - 14.43 100.00
Total
st
B, B, 10.8 3.57 - 3.57 19.00
B, B, 17.7 10.86 4.58 15.44 81.00
14.43 4.58 19.01 100.00

Approximately 75% of the total reserves are classified as Proved.

8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE B sk 24T

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reserves and Resources (continued)

Estimates of Coal Resources for the Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine
Exploration Right area total 119.38 Mt, as summarized below:

PEER(E)

REREIR(E)
ERBEXREEDRESEZ AHEEERE
$£119,380,000Mf » #ExLaA R :

Marketable Resources
(tones-millions)

AEER(EEM)

Average Mineable % of
Seam Thickness (m) Measured Indicated Total Resources
AR E HEIR
Seam BB FHEE(CK) %A 5 Bt BotE
B, B, 8.5 10.23 10.46 20.69 17
Bs Bs 3.9 2.77 3.98 6.75 6
Bs Bs 6.3 5.80 10.42 16.22 14
B. B 1.8 0.29 0.01 0.30 1
B. B. 6.1 6.85 10.21 17.06 14
B, B; 6.3 8.06 8.03 16.09 13
B, B, 21.1 22.58 19.69 42.27 35
Total #5t 56.58 62.80 119.38 100

Cost of Sales SHEM A

The cost of sales for the year was HK$136,031,000 (2012:
HK$145,408,000). The cost mainly comprise machine rental cost,
direct labor cost, cost for explosive works, amortisation of mining
right, etc. The decrease in cost of sales during the year was mainly
due to the decrease in coal demand, whilst the increase in cost
of sales are due to a write down of inventories and increase in
production cost.

Geographic segments

Hong Kong and PRC (other than Hong Kong) were the major
geographical segments of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013. Ratio analysis by geographical segments for the Group’s
turnover for the year ended 31 March 2013 is as follows:

FREHEK A A136,031,0008T(—F——
F 1 145,408,000/ 70) ° A E B R IEH
FAERA EESEAA - BRIEKAS
B S - FIHERATY - =2/
PERFE LT  MEERAZEER - BIR
PURTT & R AEERA LR ©

=48
BHE-_T—=F=A=+—HItFE FF
EHE(TBEEES) AASE T EE D
e AEEHE-_T—=F=-fA=+—H1t
FE2EEBRIFHE D FILLL B0
T

PRC
Hong Kong (other than Hong Kong)
o FE(TEEES)

Segment turnover to DEEEELR
total turnover EESE

= 100.00
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE:imw Kk 24

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had:

o net current assets of approximately HK$94,604,000 (2012:
approximately HK$272,924,000).

° bank balances and cash of approximately HK$255,620,000
(2012: approximately HK$257,246,000) which were the major
components of the Group’s current assets of approximately
HK$326,849,000 (2012: approximately HK$300,783,000).

o current liabilities of approximately HK$232,245,000 (2012:
approximately HK$27,859,000) which were mainly composed
of trade and other payables of HK$38,302,000 (2012:
HK$26,743,000) and the convertible loan notes designated
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
approximately HK$189,858,000 (2012: Nil).

o non-current liabilities of approximately HK$19,928,000
(2012: approximately HK$248,958,000) which were mainly
composed of deferred tax liability of HK$17,969,000 (2012:
HK$33,118,000) and the convertible loan notes designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss was HK$ Nil
(2012: HK$213,889,000).

The Group’s gearing ratio was Nil (2012: Nil). The computation is
based on total debt (trade and other payable, amount due to an
intermediate holding company and convertible loan notes designated
at fair value through profit and loss) less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total equity. As cash and cash equivalents exceed the
total debt for the year ended 31 March 2013, therefore gearing ratio
was nil.

Charges on Group’s Assets

As the financial year ended 31 March 2013, none of trade receivables
was pledged to secure the borrowing (2012: Nil), no leasehold land
and buildings or investment properties of the Group were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (2012: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE B sk 24T

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, there were no significant
investments and material acquisitions.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2013, there was no discontinuing
operations in the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in RMB and incurs costs in RMB
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk based on fluctuations between the Hong Kong dollars and the
RMB arising from its core operation in the PRC. In order to limit this
foreign currency risk exposure, the Group maintained cash balance
that approximate three to four months’ of operating cash flows.

TREASURY POLICIES
The Group generally finances its operation with internal generated
resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2012: Nil).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had 114 employees (2012: 117)
spreading among Hong Kong and the PRC. Industrial relationship
has been well maintained. The Group has adopted an extensive
training policy for its employees. It has also sponsored senior
executives for higher education programs. The Group has adopted a
share option scheme whereby certain employees of the Group may
be granted options to acquire shares of the Company.

EEREREANE
RBE-F-=4=A=+—BLFE I
BEEZRAREAUE -

RIEEERE

REBE_T—=F=-A=1t—HIFE K
SEB R AR

SN fL B

AEFRzWRmTEAAREE - MAXA
AAREMBILFE - AEBESERTE
ZROLDEBEE ZBTRAREEIREZ
SNERR o RIRFIZINER - NEEFH
mEEN—ENEAKERSRECRS

+
f?\u R ©

BEFBR
AEE-—REENBELEREHEEE
HREE

R-F—=F=ZA=1+—8  AREYLEE
ARABB(CT——F &) -

E&

R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—H8 A£EHEGE
B114%(ZE——F  117%) ' BHEBS
Al  AEEHEE —BRERITED
BiE - AEBERA—EXHBZREEEIIK
B OUVEYSRTHRABEESSEHRER
12 o AEEDIRMBBIERTS - Bt - AE
EE T e 8 n R EBRENRE AR AR

{/\ &

Annual Report 2013 &5 11



BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEARMGE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lo Fong Hung, aged 58, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Ms. Lo is also the
Chairperson and Managing Director of the Company and is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lo also serves
for several non-listed companies, namely as the chairperson of China
International Fund Limited and as the vice chairperson of China
Sonangol International Holding Limited, China Sonangol International
Limited and Endiama China International Holding Limited and as the
director of Sonangol Sinopec International Limited and New Bright
International Development Limited. Since 2004, Ms. Lo started
exploring and developing energy resources and industrial investment
in world-wide. Ms. Lo owns 30% shareholding interests in New
Bright International Development Limited, which currently holds
70% shareholding interests in China Sonangol International Limited.
China Sonangol International Limited is the holding company of
Ascent Goal Investments Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Ms. Lo is the wife of Mr. Wang Xiangfei.

Mr. Wang Xiangfei, aged 61, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Wang is also a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Renmin
University of China with a bachelor degree in economics in 1982.
Mr. Wang is now a Senior Accountant. Mr. Wang serves for several
non-listed companies, namely as the vice chief financial officer of
Sonangol Sinopec International Limited, as the financial advisor of
China Sonangol International Holding Limited and as the external
supervisor of Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank. Mr. Wang is also an
independent non-executive director of SEEC Media Group Limited
(@ company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)), China Development Bank International
Investment Limited (formerly known as New Capital International
Investment Limited) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange) and
Shandong Chenming Paper Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

In addition, Mr. Wang was the independent non-executive director
of Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
from the April of 2005 to the April of 2008, Chongging Iron & Steel
Company Limited from the July of 2002 to the June of 2009 and
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited from the December of 2006
to the November of 2012, companies listed on the Stock Exchange
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Previously, Mr. Wang had
also served as an executive director and CEO of China Everbright
International Limited, an executive director of China Everbright
Limited and China Everbright Technology Limited (now known as
China Haidian Holdings Limited), a director & assistant general
manager of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Wang is
the husband of Ms. Lo Fong Hung.

Mr. Kwan Man Fai, aged 44, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Kwan is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwan graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in laws and
a postgraduate certificate in laws. Mr. Kwan also holds a master
degree in laws from The London School of Economics and Social
Sciences, the University of London and a master degree in the
PRC law from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kwan is now
a partner of Messrs. Anthony Siu & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong.
Mr. Kwan has over 10 years of experience in corporate finance and
banking work, including assisting various companies in their listing
on the Main Board and Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, aged 45, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008.
Mr. Lam graduated from the University of Southampton, England
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and Statistics.
Mr. Lam is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lam is currently the Managing Director
and Head of Corporate Finance of an investment bank and has
around 19 years of experience in investment banking as well as over
3 years of experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam is also
the independent non-executive director of Cheuk Nang (Holdings)
Limited, China Fortune Financial Group Limited and Trasy Gold Ex
Limited, companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

In addition, Mr. Lam was the independent non-executive director
of Applied Development Holdings Limited from 1 October 2005 to
12 December 2011, Pearl Oriental Oil Limited from 3 October 2008
to 19 March 2013, King Stone Energy Group Limited from 23 April
2012 to 22 March 2013, Value Convergence Holdings Limited from 4
January 2010 to 24 May 2012, China Oriental Culture Group Limited
from 29 January 2008 to 5 October 2010, Hao Wen Holdings
Limited from 17 November 2010 to 16 May 2011, China Railway
Logistics Limited from 22 December 2008 to 27 April 2012 and Finet
Group Limited from 5 August 2009 to 24 January 2011, companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond, aged 47 is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008.
Mr. Wong is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CPA), a Certified Management Accountant (CMA)
and holds a certificate in financial management (CFM). Mr. Wong
holds a bachelor degree in chemical engineering and a master
degree in economics. Mr. Wong is an executive director and deputy
chairman of Raymond Industrial Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director
of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey, aged 44, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr.
Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in laws and a postgraduate certificate in laws. Mr. Chan also
holds master degrees in laws from the City University of Hong Kong
and from the People’s University of China. Mr. Chan is currently a
partner of Messrs. David Y.Y. Fung & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in civil and commercial crime
litigation and also handles various transactions for corporate clients
and banks in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hung Che Wan, aged 51, is the company secretary of the
Company appointed on 14 March 2011. Ms. Hung graduated from
the University of Stirling Scotland with bachelor degree in accounting.
Ms. Hung is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 20 years of commercial experience in
business management and administration.
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasizing on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Company has applied the principles
of the Code Provisions under the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2013 (“the year
under review”), save for the deviation from Code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed below.

THE BOARD

Roles and responsibilities

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the day
to day operations of the Company whereas the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of financial and management reporting to the Board
and shareholders of the Company as well as to provide a balanced
composition in the Board so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board.

Board composition

All directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise
S0 as to give a balance of skills, knowledge and experience required
for the running of an effective Board. The Board currently comprises
three Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The brief biographical details of the Directors and
relationship among them are set out in the section headed “Biography
of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings

During the year under review, the Board held nine board meetings
which comprising five regular meetings and four ad hoc meetings.
The attendance records of individual Directors at the board meetings
are as follows:

E=E(#&)

Esggs

REBEFER  EFEBRRITNAESFES
& BROAAEHERMOARN S - @
ANEFREFEGRNLFLENT -

Number of HESER

Name of Directors meetings attended BEEg RE
Executive Directors: HITES:
Lo Fong Hung B’IAL

(Chairperson and Managing Director) 7/9 (EEHREFHKE) 7/9
Wang Xiangfei 7/9 T AR 7/9
Kwan Man Fai 7/9 pes 7/9
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIEHTES !
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 8/9 4| 8/9
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 8/9 MR EL 8/9
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 8/9 PR 8/9

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director or Committee Members.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. In accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws, at each general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Code provision A.4.1 specifies that Non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The three independent Non-executive Directors of the company
were appointed on 25 March 2008 and have renewed their service
agreements for an extension of 3 years commencing on 25 March
2011. However, they are still subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ and officer’s liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors and Officers liabilities has
been provided to cover potential legal actions against Directors and
Officers.

Training and support for Directors

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. The
Group provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by its directors. All Directors of the Company have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any officer
with CEO title. Ms. Lo Fong Hung, the Chairperson and Managing
Director of the Company, also carried out the responsibility of
CEO during such period. In view of the size of operation of the
Group, the Board considered that this structure is more suitable
for the Company as it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company’s strategies.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs and to assist in the execution
of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have their own
terms of reference. The views of different committees and their
recommendation not only ensure proper control of the Group but
also the continual achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The Board conducts
regular review of the structure and composition of the committees
with particular attention to the skills, knowledge and experience of
individual members.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was set up in March 1999 with specific terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee which
was available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company have included the duties which are set out in the Code
provision C.3.3 of the Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
amended on 27 March 2012 in order to comply with the amendment
of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Wong Man Hin,
Raymond, Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey.

A total of four meetings were held during the year under review and
the individual attendance of members are as follows:

Number of

Name of members meetings attended

Lam Ka Wai, Graham (Chairman) 4/4
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 4/4
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 4/4

The Audit Committee reviewed the interim and final consolidated
financial statements, including the Group’s adopted accounting
principles and practices, internal controls, and financial reporting
matters in conjunction with the external auditors. The Audit
Committee endorsed the accounting treatment adopted by the
Company and had the best of its ability assured itself that the
disclosure of the financial information in this report complies with
the applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was set up in July 2005 with specific
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee which was available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company have included the duties which are
set out in the Code provision B.1.2 of the Code, with appropriate
modifications when necessary. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee was amended on 27 March 2012 in order
to comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four members, an
Executive Director of the Company namely, Mr. Kwan Man Fai and
three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company namely,
Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond, Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham and Mr.
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for determination,
as authorised by the shareholders at the annual general meeting
having regard to the operating results of the Company, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions.

During the year under review, two meetings were held and the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the existing remuneration
package of the Board and the senior management of the Company.
The individual attendance of members are as follows:
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Number of HEEE
Name of members meetings attended REHE R
Wong Man Hin, Raymond (Chairman) 2/2 BEXH(ERE) 2/2
Kwan Man Fai 2/2 A& 2/2
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 2/2 MR 2/2
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 2/2 [ hR e 2/2

Annual Report 2013 &3 19



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT %

BERRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was set up in March 2012 with specific
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee which was available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company have included the duties which are
set out in the Code provision A.5.2 of the Code, with appropriate
modifications when necessary.

The Nomination Committee, will take into consideration a candidate’s
qualification, experience, expertise and knowledge, the requirements
applicable to the Company and the structure and composition
of the Board, identifies, reviews and nominates with diligence
and care candidates suitably qualified as Board members before
making recommendation to the Board for their final appointment.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises Chairperson of the
Company, Ms. Lo Fong Hung as the chairperson of the Nomination
Committee, Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Kwan Man Fai
and three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
namely, Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond, Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham
and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey as the members of the Nomination
Committee.

During the year under review, one meeting was held. The individual
attendance of members are as follows:
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Number of HEER
Name of members meetings attended REHE R
Lo Fong Hung (Chairperson) 11 BHI(ER) 11
Kwan Man Fai 1/1 A& 1/1
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 11 =X 11
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 11 MEKE 11
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 1M1 Bk g 11
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE HEER

The Company is dedicated to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and the Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and reviewed
the Company’s policies and practices and reviewed the compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
The Board also discussed the compliance of the revised or new
Listing Rules which will be effective on future.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment relating to annual and interim
reports, inside information and price-sensitive announcements and
other financial disclosures under the Listing Rules, and reports to
regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant
to statutory requirements. As at 31 March 2013, the Directors of
the Company are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern basis.
The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Page 30 of this
report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that a sound and effective
internal control system is maintained within the Group. The Group
has adopted internal control procedures and policies to safeguard
the assets, to ensure proper maintenance of accounting records and
to carry out a reliable financial reporting and to guarantee compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the year under review, the Group has engaged SHINEWING
Risk Services Limited to conducts compliance and operation reviews
on the Group and will report its findings to the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2013, Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited, the auditor of the Company, the fee paid or payable to the
auditor and its affiliates provided to the Group as follows:
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Audit services ENZIRFE
Non-audit and taxation services IEENZ RIS ARTS
Total 4=t
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hung Che Wan, an employee of the Company, acted as the
Company Secretary of the Company. During the year under review,
Ms. Hung undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update
her skills and knowledge.

2013 2012
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATIONS

A Shareholders Communication Policy was adopted on 27 March
2012 to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company. The policy was available on the Company’s website. The
Company has established various channels of communications with
its shareholders such as publication of interim and annual reports,
press release and announcement of the latest development of the
Company in a timely manner. The annual general meeting provides
an opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
External auditor is also available at the annual general meeting to
address shareholders’ queries. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual directors.

During the year under review, one general meetings of the Company
was held. All directors of the Company, except Mr. Wang Xiangfei,
including the chairman of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and the external auditor attended
the 2012 annual general meeting held on 29 August 2012.

The 2013 annual general meeting of the Company will be held on 23
August 2013. A notice of annual general meeting will be sent to the
shareholders of the Company at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a
special general meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. The written requisition must state the purposes
of the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s) concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more of those shareholders. If the requisition is in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is
invalid, the shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all shareholders having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can
submit a written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting. The written request/statements must be signed
by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks before the AGM
in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one week before the general meeting in the case of any
other requisition. If the written request is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board (j) to include the resolution in the agenda
for the AGM; or (i) to circulate the statement for the general meeting,
provided that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and/or circulating the statement submitted by the shareholder(s)
concerned in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid
or the shareholder(s) concerned have failed to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes,
the shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the AGM or the statement will not be circulated for the
general meeting.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post, fax or email. The contact details are set
out as below:

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Registered office:

Suites 1003-1006,
10/F., Two Pacific Place,
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

Principal place of
business in
Hong Kong:

Suites 1003-1006,
10/F., Two Pacific Place,
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

Postal address:

Tel: 2248 0188
Fax: 2918 9931
Email: info@nannanlisted.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year under review, there was no significant changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
mining and sales of coal.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 32 to 150. The
directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements is set out on pages
151 to 152 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options are set out in note 27(b) and 34 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

Details of the convertible loan notes issued by the Company
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, there were no
connected transactions from any connected persons.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 27(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statements of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2013, the Company had no retained profits available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus of
HK$128,013,000 may be distributed under certain circumstances. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$191,534,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 28% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 9%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 86%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 55%.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Lo Fong Hung (Chairperson and Managing Director)
Wang Xiangfei

Kwan Man Fai

Independent non-executive directors:
Wong Man Hin, Raymond

Lam Ka Wai, Graham

Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Wang Xiangfei and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey will retire by rotation
and be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 12 to 14 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director of the Company had a significant beneficial interest,
either direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a
party at any time during the year ended 31 March 2013.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), as recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers were as follows:

Long position
Interests in an associated corporation of the Company
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Approximate
percentage

Number of of the issued

shares share capital

Name of interested HERT

Name of Directors associated corporation Nature of interest BEERZ RS

EENE HEEE AR EEME RGEAR B

Ms. Lo Fong Hung (Note 1) New Bright International  Interests of controlled 3,000 (L) 30%

BHOLZE (MisE1) Development Limited corporation

BB ERAR LR EEEEEZER

Mr. Wang Xiangfei (Note 2) New Bright International  Interests of controlled 3,000 (L) 30%

EAREE (KIFE2) Development Limited

EEBRERBR AR
L denotes as long position
Notes:

1. Ms. Lo Fong Hung (“Ms. Lo”) is interested in 3,000 shares in New Bright
International Development Limited (“New Bright”), representing 30% of the
issued share capital of New Bright, which currently owns 70% shareholding
interests in China Sonangol International Limited (“China Sonangol”).
China Sonangol is the holding company of Ascent Goal Investments
Limited (“Ascent Goal”), the controlling shareholder of the Company. The
shareholding interests of Ascent Goal is set out in the section headed
“Substantial Shareholders” of this report.

2. Mr. Wang Xiangfei is the husband of Ms. Lo and is deemed to be interested
in 3,000 shares of New Bright under the SFO.

3. Ms. Lo, an executive director of the Company, owns 30% of the issued
share capital of New Bright which in turn is interested in 70% of China
Sonangol. China Sonangol is the holding company of Ascent Goal. Thus, Ms.
Lo has an attributable interest in 569,616,589 shares of the Company and a
HK$200,000,000 convertible bond giving rise to an interest in 1,000,000,000
underlying shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of the relevant interests in the issued share

capital of the Company.

Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage
of the issued
share capital
Total of the
number of Company
Number of shares and (Note 6)
underlying underlying EARDE
Number of shares held sharesheld  BETRA
Name of Shareholders Notes  Nature of interest shares held FrisiamE FERAR  BOBEAH
RRER M ERtE FERAEE RAEBE  HEROEH (FtzE6)
Ascent Goal 1,4 Beneficial owner 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
Zi2 BxBEAA
China Sonangol 24 Interests of controlled 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
ZH B corporation
REHEE R
New Bright 2,4 Interests of controlled 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
£liE corporation
R EE 2
Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica 34 Interests of controlled 569,616,689  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
Bt corporation
REHEE R
Africa Israel Investments Ltd 5 Beneficial owner 45,000,000 = 45,000,000 5.88%
ERBEBA
Mr. Lev Leviev 5 Beneficial owner 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.13%
Lev LevievE £ ERBEBA
5 Interests of controlled 74,000,000 - 74,000,000 9.67%
corporation
R AE R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERR(E)
Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company 7/ 5 % {3 s HH BB 10 Z 17 & (48)

(continued)

Notes: BifaE

1. Ascent Goal was directly interested in 569,616,589 shares and a further s
1,000,000,000 underlying shares which may be fully allotted and issued
if the convertible bond are converted at the conversion price of HK$0.20.
These 1,569,616,589 shares were held by Ascent Goal directly as beneficial
owner. It includes (i) interests in 569,616,589 shares and (i) the convertible
bond giving rise to an interest in 1,000,000,000 underlying shares.

2. Since Ascent Goal is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Sonangol which 2.
is beneficially owned as to 70% by New Bright, the interests of Ascent Goal
is deemed to be the interests of China Sonangol and in turn the interests of
New Bright under the SFO.

3. Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica is deemed to have interests in the shares 3.
and underlying shares through her 70% interest in New Bright.

4. The 569,616,589 shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares under the 4.

convertible bond represent 74.42% and 130.66% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company respectively, thus the total of 569,616,589
shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares represents 205.08% of
the existing issued share capital of the Company. The conversion rights
attaching to the convertible bond will not be exercised and the Company
will not issue the conversion shares if, immediately following the conversion,
the Company would be unable to meet the public float requirement under
the Listing Rules.

58 For the shares held by Mr. Lev Leviev, of these shares, 45,000,000 shares 5.
were held by Africa Israel Investments Ltd, a company controlled by Mr.
Lev Leviev through his 74.89% interests in Africa Israel Investments Ltd;
29,000,000 shares were held by Memorand Management (1998) Ltd,
a company controlled by Mr. Lev Leviev through his 99% interests in
Memorand Ltd.; and 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Lev Leviev directly.

6. The approximate percentage of shareholdings is based on 765,373,584 6.
shares as at 31 March 2013, not the enlarged issued share capital of the
Company upon full conversion of the convertible bond.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS EZWHBREK 2=

No director of the Company had interests in a business which ~ RFRREEARRE A - AN E B}
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the PN BN 52 B 25 75 B #2 Sk IR AR T S AT A
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, during the ~ BB F 2 XFH(ERR ETRA) H A #

year and up to the date of this report. i e
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEg %

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors
of the Company, over 25% of the issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the
Company in 2011 upon the retirement of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

Lo Fong Hung
Chairperson and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 21 June 2013

ARHRE
R ARG AR AR RS D TE R
A RAREBH  ARALBEAAAE
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BB ED
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FIARARIMEXBH(ES) BB EHH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

53 % BAEh 3R

M\ Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 32 to 150, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

EEE5E (&8 StMEHMERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Member Crowe Horwath International

HB IS IR T TR e IR 0912
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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BE
(R EFREZMH L FRAE])

HME TR ERERE10EfEMEmEEIR
BEXERAR(TERA]) REKB AR (H
HWIERE D ZHEAMBRE - EPEER
—E-ZF-A=t+—HZEERAFAH
BRAREBEZR LFE 2GS E2E KRS
R HARREHRIGERSRERAR
TESHERRME N EMHAME -

EERGAMBRRARE SR

BERAERRAARBREGAG([E
BEEIAE )RM BBV HREER R
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WHH 2 R BERER - YA REFERE
WEZ BRAREES] - RS M BHwR T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & 3/ #% & 3R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Betty P.C. Tse

Practising Certificate Number PO3024

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FExT FBTT
Turnover L 6 165,041 190,974
Cost of sales SHER A (136,031) (145,408)
Gross profit £l 29,010 45,566
Other revenue H Az 7 2,822 1,413
(Impairment loss)/reversal on intangible EREECRERE),
assets i) 17 (49,928) 39,733
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries L EHTE ARz W 31 - 1,141
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (1,126) (1,079)
Administrative expenses THER (21,769) (18,934)
Change in fair value of convertible AR ERER 2
loan notes NEES) 28 24,031 (12,703
Finance costs BhE P AN 9 (23) =
(Loss)/profit before tax BRI (EHR), SR F (16,983) DNl
Income tax credit/(expense) Fisfie,/ (FAX) 10 6,803 (11,420)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),wF 11 (10,180) 43,717
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wl A
Exchange difference on translation of RENREER RZ7
functional currency to presentation BN =R
currency 6,568
Reclassification adjustment for exchange FtHEMB AT Z
difference relating to disposal of b N R ERT
subsidiaries DI 1,509
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRE M ZEEUA -
net of nil tax MBREHIIE 1,079 8,077
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRZE(EE), KA
for the year ek (9,101) 51,794
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: AN ATREFERE
18),/ A :
— Owners of the Company —KRREHEB A (10,180) 43,717
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for UTALTEREFEEZE
the year attributable to: (B518), A #R%E
— Owners of the Company S VNEIL 2PN (9,101) 51,794
(Loss)/earnings per share (expressed in  EAX(EE) /Z&F| (LA
Hong Kong cents) 251)
- Basic —HK 14 5.71
~ Diluted —#E 14 2.72

SIBNFA0E150E Z I FER AR % M5
RZ—HD -

The notes on pages 40 to 150 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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e

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OE FINANCIAL POSITION

2013 2012
—E—=F Sh—adEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB RS 21,215 24,229
Intangible assets mEE 71,877 132,471
Goodwill e = _
Security deposit REES 2,820 2,809
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 3,786 =
99,698 159,509
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =g 68,277 38,483
Trade and other receivables W E R R
H A FEUGRIR 2,952 5,054
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEFBEIRE 255,620 257,246
326,349 300,783
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables ERERR
H A EATRIE 26,743
Amount due to an intermediate holding JES — R R N R A A
company KIE 40
Tax payable FERI IR 1,076
Convertible loan notes designated as e E B A A BR
financial liabilities at fair value through WEIBRAERIE 2
profit or loss SRAEZ TR
EXRER 189,858 =
(232,245) (27,859)
Net current assets REBEERE 94,604 272,924
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTBARE 194,302 432,433
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Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital &N
Reserves it
Equity attributable to owners of the ARAREE AEGLER
Company
Non-current liabilities ERBARB
Convertible loan notes designated as BE R AT AR
financial liabilities at fair value through W Bz NERIE 2
profit or loss TRLEE 2 TR
EREE
Provision for close down, restoration Bk - B R
and environmental costs IRIERR A
Deferred tax liabilities BIETIEAE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21
June 2018.

On behalf of the board

Lo Fong Hung
EBRA
Director

EF

The notes on pages 40 to 150 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
76,537 76,537
97,837 106,938
174,374 183,475
213,889

1,959 1,951
17,969 33,118
19,928 248,958
194,302 432,433

R-ZE—=F"A-+—HaEz=<EK
FHETEE o

REEES

Wang Xiangfei
EXFH
Director

EF

FIBNFA0E150E 2 I FER AR % M5
RZ—HD -
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Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Amount due to an intermediate
holding company

Convertible loan notes designated
as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Non-current liabilities
Convertible loan notes designated
as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

FRBEE
UE RN Y
RHB AR ZRE

REBEE

JRE AP I8 1 A ROR
H il & Wk IR
RBekREFEERR

REBAE

H At A 5RIA B
FERT &

FEft —Rp MERR AT
IR

T RE AN TEDIRR
WHBZEREE 2
TRA BB

BERER

REBEEFE
REERRBAR

IR 18
AR
G

REE
T AR A TESE
AR AR
SEE T TR
EFER

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21

June 2013.

On behalf of the board

Lo Fong Hung

EHAL
Director

EF

The notes on pages 40 to 150 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

2013 2012
=A== —_F—-
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BiteE THET FET
16 1,189 651
20 - =
1,189 651
20 153,722 153,701
22 552 102
24 199,515 207,590
353,789 361,393
25 1,192 1,084
26 - 40
28 189,858 =
(191,050) (1,124)
162,739 360,269
163,928 360,920
27 76,537 76,537
27 87,391 70,494
163,928 147,031
28 213,889
163,928 360,920
RoZ—=FXA-t - AREFEHER
AT -
RREFY
Wang Xiangfei
EAR
Director
EE

FIEN FE 401508 2 IR A 7% 5 W 15
RZ—H7 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ty Py DS

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAHEARLE
Convertible Exchange
Share Share  loan notes Capital ~ Statutory ~translation Special - Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve losses Total
Wik
BHEE

k& ReEE s EXRE IERE  EXGE  RHRE  EHER L
HK$000  HK000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKB000  HK$000
Fin AR Fin TAR Tin ThR T Fhn T

(note (note (note (note (note (note
27 al) 27 4(il) 27 4l 27 a(v) 27alV) 27 alvi)
i3 (Mt (B3t (Mt i3 (i
ad)) ore)  27a)  27ap) 27l 27al)

At 1 Apri 2011 W-E——EWA-B 76537 19153 = 14,882 5,354 2,963 A3 (186732 131681
Prioryear adiustments ~ FEE R - - - - = 3011 = (3,011) =
As restated e 76537 191534 = 14,882 5,354 5974 7143 (189743 131681
Profit for the year FRER - - - = = = = 13717 43717

Exchange diferenceon  # & & AT
tranglation of functional & 7 EH £
currency to presentation
currency - - - - - 6,568 - = 6,068

Reclassfication adjustment 31 EB AR Z
forexchange difference B3 £EEE
relaing to cisposal of  HEFE

subsidiaries - - - - - 1,509 - - 1,509
Total other comprehensive SRR H2EN LS
income for the year - - - - - 8,077 - - 8,077

Total comprenensive ~ ERZEMALE

income for the year - - - - - 8,077 - L3717 51,794
Tranfer b - - - - 1,282 - - (1282 -
Appropriation of EEREERS AR

maintgnance and

production funds = = = = 29,09 = = (29,029 =
Utiisation of maintenance 4R 4EEE ¢ EF

and production funds - - - - (29,029) - - 29,029 -

At 31 March 2012 RZE-ZF
A=t-A 76,537 191,534 = 14,882 6,636 14,051 27,143 (147308 183475
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SIN EQUITY AR EHR

Atiributable to owners of the Company

NG ZIN
Convertible Exchange
Share Share  loan notes Capital ~ Statutory translation Special  Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve losses Total
Wik
BHEE

ka  RHEE s EARE IERRE  EXGE  RHRE  EHER L
HK§000  HK000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKB00  HK$000
Fin TAR Fin TAR T ThR T AR T

(note (note (note (note (note (note

27 al)) 27 4(il) 27 4l 27 a(v) 27al) 27 alvi)

i3 (Mt i3 (Mt i3 (i

27 ) o7q)  274i))  27aw) aah)  27a)

At1 Apri 2012 RZE-—FMA-A 76,537 191,534 - 14,882 6,636 14,051 21,143 (147,308) 183,475
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (10,180) (10,180)

Bxchange differenceon ~ ETNEEE AET
tranglation of functional ~ §% 7 #E
currency to presentation

currency - - - - - 1,019 - - 1,079
Total other comprehensive EMEM2ERALE
income for the year = = = = = 1,079 = = 1,079

Total comprenensiveloss M2 EERAE

for the year - - - - - 1,079 - (10,180) (@101
Transfer it - - - - 2,849 - - (2.849) -
Appropriation of EEREERS AR

maintgnance and

production funds = = = = 28,745 = = (28,745) =
Utiisation of maintenance 4R 4EEE ¢ &R

and production funds - - - - (28,745) - - 28,745 -
At31 March 2013 RZE-=F

=h=1-H 76,537 191,534 - 14,882 9485 15,130 21143 (1603%7) 174374

The notes on pages 40 to 150 form an integral part of these financial — FI|# R E40E 1508 2 Mt s # A 5% Z B 15 3R
statements. TK2—HP o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

o 5 B i = 3R

g =E=A=t-

2013 2012
—EB-=F =
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
PEE FHET FHT
Operating activities REER
(Loss)/profit before tax BrFiA(E51E),HF (16,983) 55,137
Adjustments for: 518 B ERAE
Depreciation of property, W - WEKEE
plant and equipment e 4,053 4,041
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 12,798 7,166
Impairment loss/(reversal) on ‘R EERE
intangible assets &8, (#E) 49,928 (39,733)
Write down/(reversal of write down) FEMWR
of inventories (R =) 15,058 (17,900)
Fair value change in convertible B RERATES R
loan notes designated at fair value WEEENERE 2
through profit or loss AMBREREEZ
NE(EE S (24,031) 12,703
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment B i 6
Net exchange loss/(gain) bE B8 (e )
FEE 65 (558)
Interest expenses MEFX 23 -
Interest income FEWA (2,599) (1,117)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR K = (1,141)
Operating cash flow before movements &EE BB FI 2 K&
in working capital ReERE 38,312 18,604
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM), SHb (44,442) 17,730
Decrease/(increase) in trade and U S R R L A MR
other receivables R, (M) 2,112 (350)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B AR
other payables m|igm,/ CRd) 11,393 (3,035)
Decrease in amount due to an e —REFR N ZERR A A
intermediate holding company IR (40) (633)
Cash generated from operations REEBMBRS 7,335 32,416
Income tax paid BRFSH (9,236) (2,254)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEK(FTA),/FMBR
operating activities SFE (1,901) 30,162
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LOWS SREeRERER

—E-=F=A=+—-HLEFE

Investing activities

Additions of property,
plant and equipment

Additions of exploration and
evaluation assets

Interest received

Net cash outflow on disposal of
subsidiaries

Increase in security deposit

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect on foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year, represented by bank
balances and cash

The notes on pages 40 to 150 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

REXK
NEWE - BE KRB

NEMRRHEEE
EEEIES
HEMBARZRE
T HERR
REEREIZ I
REXBMRAR S FH

BB XK
ERHE

BB X AR S FH

RERREEEEBA L
OR2) /18 nF R

FHOZRER
RE%EEAR

ERESH I IE

FRZEERBREEE
HE - 2 RRTER
ERE

RZ—87 -

2013
==
HK$°000
THET

(958)

(1,659)

2,599

)

(23)

(23)

(1,942)

257,246

255,620

2012

HK$'000
TAT

(897)

1,117

(79)
(784)

(6493)

29,519

225,857

1,870

257,246

IR EE40E 1508 2 M E AR % S H 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R4 355 3 2= P R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B

40 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED SR &REZARAT

Pt

EZR-ZF=A=1+-RLEEMTEITREM)

GENERAL

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s parent company is
Ascent Goal Investments Limited (“Ascent Goal”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and the Group’s ultimate holding company is New Bright
International Development Limited (“New Bright”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. Its ultimate
controlling party is Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience of the shareholders as
the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
subsidiaries of the Company are principally engaged in mining
and sales of coal.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 19 September 2011, the name of
the Company was changed from International Resources
Enterprise Limited (B &REXBR A A]) to Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (I ERBEEAE AR 7).
The certificate of incorporation on change of name and
the certificate of secondary name have been issued by the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda and the name change
took into effect on 4 October 2011.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B f& R &R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers of financial assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes — Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Except as disclosed below, the application of the above
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and/or disclosures set out in the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers of financial assets

The Amendments to HKFRS 7 require additional disclosures
about financial assets that have been transferred but not
derecognised to enable users of the Group’s financial
statements to understand the relationship of those assets that
have not been derecognised with their associated liabilities.
In addition, the amendments require disclosures about the
entity’s continuing involvement in derecognised assets to
enable users to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated
with, such involvement. Upon the adoption of the Amendments
to HKFRS 7, additional disclosures on the Group’s discounted
bills receivable were made in note 23 to these financial
statements.

RAFE RAEMERT BB M B8,
HEA(EBMBHREER D)

BRGNS EREMNAEE LA
NEZER S HIRERERZ BUR
BAEVBHREEAETT R - EFUAT
BHEASENBHRERER

BANBREENETS, [2BTA  #F-

EEIES TREEER)
BRGHENF12Y.  [HEH—ETHE -
EHEN KEFEEE

AEEWERBETARE /ST HHE
el R AR FTET R SKAR R  BRIATS
FIREES - MAFERA L EE
MG R ZER] - HiRAMBR
KHVEHRSER, LR ERA MR
ROPBEEHLBEEATE -

BENBREENER [2HTE RKE
EEIES —TREEEZ]

BB BHMEERBTRIERTAEREA
PEEREL RKBHEERNSREE
EHEZRE S AKETBHRL
ERETHRZERHAMEERNEE
ERABREMREER o M EFTAR
REBERFE S RERIHEREEN
HEE - SEBEAFEES RN
ERAERR - KRBT BT HREE
AIBETRIERI AR - AKBERGEY
R M 235 B R R BRI
FEWE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 817 & &R i =%
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-=5=ZF=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

42  NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED BRI &REZRRAT

ETEETEE

BRE TR TEZQFERFEN &
BB HRRITIARE LR AREE RS -
BRASHBEREAMT o ERKA—
RIZEER SR THREZ AT ER

=
EE

RAMBRRERBTESIHNAE
M2 BEEMBREERRE - 1t
S MEMBRREEEEMER S
FIERARESR LMRAIREAERA
ROIRE 2 BEBRKESR -

a) #HAKREEE
RAMBHRRBEARE MR
HzBE(EMBAR) 2R
RBARPAREE—HER
LB RAEE R - A ETR
PR - AIRERREEZER
AR o

FRMKRESHENB AR 2
AN ERKERRERE
ERBERRUREEBER) L5
ARAEERER - MBARZ
2HWABRETARRREE A
NOFER s - BEMHBEEY
TR s IR B A AR o

WHRE - HIE AR 2 BHRER
TUARE  EESHERERN
SEEMKERRTAEER—
B o

FESRERARRARZRS &
& WARRAXESERA R
H5H o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #5 3R & i 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the owners of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—-HLFECGCTEITREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognise the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (jii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as gain or loss in profit or loss attributable
to the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in associate or
a jointly controlled entity.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt 7%k & Ms

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

b)

c)

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place prior to 1
April 2010

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition
were generally recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the recognised amount of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the recognised
amount of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the acquisition,
the excess was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the minority interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amount of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—-HLFECGCTEITREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

c)

d)

e)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated
to a cash-generating unit was acquired in a business
combination during the current annual period, that unit
shall be tested for impairment before the end of the
current annual period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based
on of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any identified impairment loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ # 3R 3% Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

e)

Intangible assets (continued)

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Patents and trademarks

Cost incurred on the acquisition of patents and
trademarks are capitalised in the consolidated statement
of financial position and are amortised by equal annual
instalments over the estimated useful life of five years.
Patents and trademarks are not revalued as there is no
active market for these assets.

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses and are amortised
based on the units of production method utilising only
recoverable coal reserves as the depletion base.

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost of the exploration rights are transferred to
mining rights upon the government’s approval of the
mining license and the commencement of the mining
activities.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search
for mineral resources, the determination of technical
feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of
an identified resource.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—-HLFECGCTEITREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

f) Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)
Exploration and evaluation expenditure comprises costs
which are directly attributable to:

- research and analysing historical exploration data;

- gathering exploration data through topographical,
geochemical and geophysical studies;

= exploratory drilling, trenching and sampling;

- determining and examining the volume and grade
of the resource;

- surveying transportation and infrastructure
requirements; and

conducting market and finance studies

Expenditure during the initial exploration stage of
a project is charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Exploration and
evaluation costs, including the costs of acquiring licenses,
are capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets on
a project-by-project basis pending determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of the project.

The capitalised costs are presented as either tangible or
intangible exploration and evaluation assets according
to the nature of the assets. Tangible and intangible
exploration and evaluation assets that are available for use
are depreciated/amortised over their useful lives. When a
project is abandoned, the related irrecoverable costs are
written off to profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ # 3R 3% Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

9)

h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and building held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any
(see note 3())).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—-HLFECGCTEITREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #5 3R & i 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
security deposit, trade and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t-HLFEGTEITREM

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the

financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
permits the entire combined contract (assets or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B # 3% % Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the ‘change in fair value of
convertible loan notes’ line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 28.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and amount due to an intermediate holding
company are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 817 & &R i =%
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-=5=ZF=t—HLFEUTETREN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes contains liability and equity
components

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible loan notes) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This
amount is recorded as liability on an amortised cost basis
using the effective interest method until extinguished
upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible loan notes, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt 7%k & Ms

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible loan notes (continued)

Convertible loan notes contains liability and equity
components (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transactions costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the live of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.

Convertible loan notes designated as financial liabilities at
FVTPL

Convertible loan notes issued by the Group (including
related embedded derivatives) are designated as financial
liabilities at FVTPL on initial recognition. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the entire convertible loan note
is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognsied in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognsied and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt 7%k & Ms

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=-A=t—HLEFEGTEBITREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs

One consequence of coal mining is land subsidence
caused by the resettlement of the land at the mining
sites. Depending on the circumstances, the Group
may relocate inhabitants from the mining sites prior
to conducting mining activities or the Group may
compensate the inhabitants for losses or damage from
close down and land subsidence after the sites have
been mined. The Group may also be required to make
payments for restoration, rehabilitation or environmental
protection of the land after the sites have been mined.

Close down and restoration costs include the dismantling
and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of
residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas.
Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during
mine development or during the production phase,
based on the net present value of estimated future
costs. The cost is capitalised where it gives rise to future
benefits, whether the rehabilitation activity is expected to
occur over the life of the operation or at the time of close
down. The capitalised cost is amortised over the life of
the operation and the increase in the net present value of
the provision is included in borrowing costs.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B #5 3R &R M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BE=

E—=F=A=1+—HLFEUUTETHEN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

i)

)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs (continued)

Where there is a change in the expected decommissioning
and restoration costs, an adjustment is recorded against
the carrying value of the provision and related assets,
and the effect is then recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a prospective
basis over the remaining life of the operation. Provisions
for close down and restoration costs do not include any
additional obligations which are expected to arise from
future disturbance. The cost estimates are reviewed
and revised at the end of the reporting period to reflect
changes in conditions.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #5 3R & i 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=-A=t—HLEFEGTEBITREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

k)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. E23BE(HE)
(continued)

)} Impairment of assets (continued) ) BEREGE)
i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities ) BAFEBERHEMEW
and other receivables (continued) MEZ EE(E

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

HEFEEFRARER -
BIATHABEE MERE

For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with
note 3()(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 3(|)(ii).

For trade and other receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} % $R3% B =%
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-—=5=F=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
) Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade and other receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- intangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #&$R &R M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t-HLFEGTEITREM

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

1) Impairment of assets (continued)
ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt 7%k & Ms

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
) Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed annually and adjusted
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets and whenever one of the
following facts and circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable (the list is
not exhaustive):

- The period for which the entity has the right
to explore in the specific area has expired
during the period or will expire in the near
future, and is not expected to be renewed;

- Substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned;

- Exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not led
to the discovery of commercially viable
quantities of mineral resources and the entity
has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area; or

3.

TESTBER(E)
) EEREH
i) HitEEZREGR)
—  RIEERAE
SLEE (BRI M
5 HAEEE K
EEBEEHRE

ii)

FRD AR
8 - ERIREY
MBS T B -

P m 2 REREE
BRRAEBEFEILAR
MR EE R R
BECEEREE -
P 2R E R ER
RO 2 FEA

1835 o

BIREAEEEZHE
A N E R —IBEFHIT
ABRGREEEELZ
AREE (I 3EFFS) AT BE
XM - AIRBEEAEE
TR SE 365 [ & AR E |
SFEHAMEEETERN
WHLBELEH AR -

- ERARBRETH
& < IR R EA M fE i
XA A A R
m o BRI EE

t
=

—  WEEENEEIE—

SRR RS e
BEEER RN
%

-  DREHER TR
ZREERIL ARBE
BINPHE LRI 2R
EERE - BER
IRER IR E R
ZBREE 3K

Annual Report 2013 53 63



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 817 & &R i =%
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-=5=FA=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

1)

Impairment of assets (continued)
iii) Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
(continued)
- Sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely
to proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely
to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7%k & Kis

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=-A=t—HLEFECGTEBITREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

n)

0)

Share-based payment

Share options granted by the Company to directors
and employees of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t-HLFEGTEITREM

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B # 3% % Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bfi83R & K&t
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-=5=ZF=t—HLFEUTETREN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 8.

(continued)

o) Income tax (continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B # 3% % Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

p)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except
for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

— exchange differences on transactions entered into
in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks;
and

= exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k K=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTEITREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

p)

q)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange translation reserve (attributing
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B #% 3R &R i 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=-A=t—HLEFECGTEBITREMN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
q) Leased assets (continued)

i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases,
with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as an
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease; and

= land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t-HLFEGTEITREM

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
q) Leased assets (continued)

i)

ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation of the
assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 3(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 3(l).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt 7%k & Ms

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

n

s)

Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are carried at
their present values.

ii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #&$R &R M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t-HLFEGTEITREM

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
1) Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;

ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

if) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B f& R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

1) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s executive directors for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

3.

TEETEHRE)

) EEALGE
BAZTRKERBIEARA AR
2 FXRALTFERTEZ
BRXPZHREKE -

Uﬂfli} AN\

\

u  SERE
REDBRIBEREAZHRZE
DREBZEBEEERRBTA
KERITEF Y BERF B
HoE - AEERDEEREEZ
BEEGMHEAREEZIARH
Ketplg 2 /IR

AMBREMS - BRIEDFERE
PR B0 R A R B S A E v e AR 7S
HE  £ETHFMUEE  BEFRE
KRR - BED ECE m SR AR
B2 EAREERBEZME T
EAALL . BRISEXEEDET
SREHE - ERIFFEAZEE
DR WA LA AEARE
AR REE -

BRI E ot H i R 5t R EABA
EZETERIR
RIERMEIMAARE 2 &5 B3R
B NAREFAHTREREMER
KRSMZEERABREERELH
o fEEt RBRR - ZE[EF RERR
RRBEEERIREMERRERZ
RAEEL - ERERAEANNLSE
flat o

ZEME MARRRR S FER - 1
CHE-RIEREEEZ SEHE R
AlZE M EZHRER - KWEFT
FEBE MR - RIEERTHHE
K AR REARR MR ©

Annual Report 2013 3 75



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B #& 3R &R M s

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTEITREM)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Reserve estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
coal reserves. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological, technical
and economic factors, including quantities, grades, production
techniques, recovery rates, production costs, transport costs,
commodity demand and commodity prices. Estimating the
quantity and/or grade of reserves requires the size, shape and
depth of ore bodies or fields to be determined by analysing
geological data such as drilling samples. This process may
require complex and difficult geological judgements and
calculations to interpret the data.

76  NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED SR &REZ AR AT

BAS S ot H i R L5t R EABA
EZEFERFR(E)

EFFAAAERZ EZRIE

ATREBAR ETERKENRE
HIR AR TR R 2 Mt
ERR - ATREEEE T —EMHFE
ZEENMBBRAERIELEATE -

HEME
RERARKERAIGZEAKE
REFERS ZEFERRE - B
HHE  ApnE  RWREBERER
HEFHEFTRER  HPEREH
B mfr - £ERM - REEX - £E
KA EBBAA  BmERREmE
1% BEtRECBER M
ARBRRESHEBEIN B
BRRIES ZHRE  FRRRE - It
THFEF R EEERE 2 8 HIH Mt
BARREARAEUR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B f&$R R M s

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=-A=t—HLEFECGTEBITREMN)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Reserve estimates (continued)

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate reserves
change from period to period, and because additional
geological data is generated during the course of operations,
estimates of reserves may change from period to period.
Changes in reported reserves may affect the Group’s financial
results and financial position in a number of ways, including the
following:

i) Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes in
estimated future cash flows.

ii) Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
the profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where the
useful economic lives of assets change.

i)~ Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

iv)  The carrying value of deferred tax may change as a result
of changes in the asset carrying values as discussed
above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#83R & Mt
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-=5=ZF=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Carrying value of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and impairment losses, where appropriate. These
carrying amounts (exclude exploration and evaluation assets
classified as intangible assets) are reviewed for impairment
whenever internal and external sources of information indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In estimating the recoverable
amounts of assets, various assumptions, including future
cash flows to be associated with the non-current assets and
discount rates, are made. If future events do not correspond
to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts will need to be
revised, and this may have an impact on the Group’s results of
operations or financial position. The impairment assessment of
the Group’s mining right and exploration and evaluation assets
included in intangible assets is further discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B #& R &R M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=-A=t—HLEFEGTEBITREMN)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of mining right and exploration and evaluation
assets

The Group assesses each cash generating unit annually to
determine whether any indication of impairment exists, which
included internal and external sources of information for
mining rights, and facts and circumstances for exploration and
evaluation assets. Where an indicator of impairment exists,
a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made, which
is considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. These assessments require the use of
estimates and assumptions such as long-term commodity
prices, discount rates, future capital requirements, exploration
potential and operating performance. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value because quoted market prices are not
readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which require significant judgement estimates
such as sale volume, selling price and amount of operating
costs. Management has assessed its cash generating units as
being an individual mine site, which is the lowest level for which
cash flows are largely independent of other assets. Impairment
loss of HK$49,928,000 for exploration and evaluation assets
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March
2013 (2012: reversal of impairment loss of HK$26,027,000
for mining right and of HK$13,706,000 for exploration and
evaluation assets was recognised). Details of impairment test
on intangible assets are set out in note 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #&$R &R M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t-HLFEGTEITREM

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation for convertible loan notes

The fair value of convertible loan notes are determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group has adopted judgement to
select an appropriate valuation method and make assumption
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
transaction date and each reporting date with reference
to the valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers. The valuation model
requires the input of subjective assumptions which includes
the stock price volatility, expected dividend yield, risk free rate
and time to expiration. As at 31 March 2013, the carrying
amount of convertible loan notes designated as FVTPL is
HK$189,858,000 (2012: HK$213,889,000).

Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B # 3% % Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Write down of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging analysis of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for use in production or
sales. The management estimates the net realisable value for
consumables and coals based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a item-by-item basis at the end
of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
items. During the year ended 31 March 2013, a write-down
of inventories of HK$15,058,000 (2012: reversal of write
down of HK$17,900,000) was recognised in profit or loss.
As at 31 March 2013, the carrying amount of inventories is

HK$68,277,000 (2012: HK$38,483,000).

Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjust credit limits based on payment history
and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit
losses based upon its historical experience and any specific
customer collection issues that it has been identified. Credit
losses have historically been within the Group’s expectations
and the Group will continue to monitor the collections from
customers and maintain an appropriate level of estimated
credit losses. As at 31 March 2013, the carrying amount of
trade and bills receivables is HK$735,000, net of accumulated
impairment losses of HK$Nil (2012: HK$2,499,000, net of

accumulated impairment losses of HK$NIl).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k K=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTEITREM)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND 4. EBEer U R4 FEBEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY EZ2FTEREFEE)

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) EE RN LTS e e S
Provision for close down, restoration and environmental FARF - B BIRIERAEE

costs

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental AR - EERNEREKABEREIEE
costs is determined by management based on their past ZEIRFHBRERRGE - BiEiEE
experience and best estimation of future expenditures, after RENEARST B2 HEGBTETE -
taking into account existing relevant PRC regulations. However, SRTM » 1E B BTERRE & B o 2R 8 aF
in so far as the effect on the land and the environment from T RREZFEZFSEBAZER
current mining activities becomes apparent in future years, the T - BN 2 b ET A RE AR T A
estimate of the associated costs may be subject to revision 1Ba] - NEBEFEEE - ERKRIRIEK
from time to time. Details of the Group’s provision for close R 7 ZE 5 F M 5529 ©

down, restoration and environmental costs are set out in note

29.

Recognition of deferred tax assets BRIRCEREEE

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets which arose AREBODHRAELEHRIEBEE 0 HR
from deductible temporary differences as set out in note 30. BRI ERERE  EIEERME
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends V- FEHBEEZ SR EEE
on whether it is probable that future taxable profits or taxable BURFA & T 17 1E 7R 2K FE 557 50 o F1) 21 FE
temporary differences will be available against which the B E R ERE - A EE - M7
assets can be utilised. In cases where the actual future taxable EAEZ B R KERTG sk ERT
profits or taxable temporary differences generated are less iy = RRTEH AR - BIA] a8 IR
than expected, a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, ERIEFIIEE E AR AR R E
which will be recognised in profit or loss for the period in HRIREEER - RZE—=F=H
which such reversal takes place. As at 31 March 2013, the —+—H BEEREEEMNEREEE
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is HK$3,786,000 (2012: /3,786,000 L (—FE——4F : T
HK$Nil). TT) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ % %5 % i 5F
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-—=F=F=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

b)

5. @I A

Categories of financial instruments a) &RIEEA
The Group The Company
AEH b/
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F EmiEiaatial — T ——F Wbk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET THT FHET FAT
Loans and receivables &3 N U R IE
(including cash and (@%Eﬁ%&
cash equivalents) BeEEER) 265,014 361,298
Financial liabilities at REBHEKAGE
amortised cost ZEmaE 12,242 1,124
Financial liabilities at RAFEYBRI T
FVTPL BRAEREY
TRIAE 213,889 213,889
Financial risk management objectives and policies b) MHEKREEBERBRK

The Group’s major financial instruments include security
deposit, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, amount due to
an intermediate holding company and convertible loan
notes. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency expenditures, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.

b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
i) Currency risk (continued)
Certain receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and payables of the Group and the Company are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity to which they relate.

The following table shows the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which

MIA(HE)

b)

they relate.

Assets BE
Liabilities afE
Assets BE
Liabilities af&
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M ERERE B R RBUR (F)

g bR ()
AEBRARBZETRE
WiR - RekBReEE
T8 B DA B FE AN R IR G LA AR
SEERZAMNEEE
SNz E#EETE -

TRERAEERART]
RS HIRE A R O A
RUARBEEREEE N
SheBBHEZEESLR
EMEL 2 ¥R

The Group
AEH
As at As at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

RS —=F St
SV ER:l —A=t+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
200,067 207,692
191,050 214,993
The Company
AAF

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

RIS —=F Ao
=A=+-5 [PEGEREE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR

353,789 361,393
191,050 215,013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R R M s

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. @I E(E)
b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) WFEREEEERBR(E)
(continued)
i)  Currency risk (continued) ) EEEER(GE)
Sensitivity analysis HREES T
The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign AREFEEEITEAIBIT
currency risk of HK$. ZHNEE [E g o
The following table details the group entities’ TRFIIAEEERLEE
sensitivity to a 5% (2012: 5%) decrease and THEAEEEB 2R
increase in HK$ against each group entity’s B ZIERAUKEN(ZE
functional currency. 5% (2012: 5%) is the sensitivity — 1 1 5%) ZBWRKE o
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk 5%( T ——F :5%) 5
internally to key management personnel and AEEEIE A S K EPER
represents management’s assessment of the ANEE [ Bz BT R 2 SRR FE L
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange R WIEEIEEHINEE
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only KU RE A B EE 2T -
outstanding foreign currency denominated BRREDITE BB AINE
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the FTECAEBEERIEE -
year end for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in foreign WHINEER 25%(=F
currency rates. A negative number below indicates —ZF %) EEHAER
an increase in loss for the year and accumulated FRz2HE  EXAEE
losses of the Group, decrease in the profit for the ERINGEEE L BTH
year and increase in accumulated losses of the BE5%(—FE——F : 5%)
Company (2012: decrease in profit for the year B TRABBBERTAS
and increase in accumulated losses of the Group, B R ANEEZE B
decrease in the profit for the year and increase - FREMNRDRARA
in accumulated losses of the Company) where A REtEEE N —E——
each group entity’s functional currency strengthen F - FRRMRD RAE
5% (2012: 5%) against HK$. For a 5% (2012: B2t EEEn - £RE
5%) weakening of each group entity’s functional ID RS NN = =
currency against HK$, there would be an equal and ) o S ANERETE
opposite impact. ZINEEE I H B TR ES%
ZE—Z4F :5%)  BlfE
MEBEHEEIRER 2
7
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
TE-=F el — T —— —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET THExT FAET
Profit or loss and i F Sk ETHE &
accumulated losses ExtHEIE 366 (7,319)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 817 & &R i =%
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-=5=ZF=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank balances and security deposit
carried at prevailing market rate. The Group has
not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has not
formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant
would decrease/increase the Group’s loss for
the year ended 31 March 2013 and decrease/
increase the Group’s accumulated losses as at the
reporting date by approximately HK$1,292,000
(increase/decrease the Group’s profit of the year
ended 31 March 2012 and decrease/increase in
the Group’s accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,286,000 as at 31 March 2012), and would
increase/decrease Company’s profit for the year
ended 31 March 2013 and decrease/increase the
Company’s accumulated losses as at the reporting
date by approximately HK$998,000 (increase/
decrease the Company’s profit of the year ended
31 March 2012 and decrease/increase in the
Company’s accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,038,000 as at 31 March 2012).This was
mainly attributable to the exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate bank balances of the Group and
of the Company.

5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #5 3R & i 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

ii)

Equity price risk

The Group was required to estimate the fair value
of the convertible loan notes (see note 28) at the
end of the reporting period with changes in fair
value to be recognised in the profit or loss. The fair
value adjustment would be affected either positively
or negatively, amongst others, by the changes in
the Company’s share market price.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below had been determined
based on the exposure to the Company’s
share price risk at the reporting date only. If the
Company’s share price had been 5% higher and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year (as a result of changes
in fair value of convertible loan notes) would
increase and accumulated losses would increase
by approximately HK$514,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2013 (2012: post-tax profit would
decrease and accumulated losses would increase
by approximately HK$9,539,000). If the input of
share price to the valuation model of the derivatives
embedded in the convertible loan notes had
been 5% lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year (as
a result of changes in fair value of convertible loan
notes) would decrease and accumulated losses
would decrease by approximately HK$482,000
during the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: post-
tax profit would increase and accumulated losses
would decrease by approximately HK$9,375,000).

o.

ERMIAE)
b) MBEREREBRRBR(E

i)

PR A (B 1% 2L Bk
AEBANRE HRAE
BT AT RRERRR(R
ff7E28) 2 AFE - WHIE
HAEREAFEZS -
R EFEHZ(EFE
BIARBRDMEZS
EHXBEZE

HEEFE ST
TSR DT ERER
RE BHAS 2 AR A
REREE ° WARQ A
BB EFS% » MrAE
MBS IFTE - RIS
BE_Z—==A8
=+—HIEFEZKRHE%
FREE (TR A AR
BERERZAFEEZS)
A MBFEEKE
0 #4514,0008 T ( =&
—ZF  BREEEF SR
A R AT E B A8 18 0 4
9,539,000/ 7T ) ° fisj A #&
BEREBERNETETA
HEEXNEBE  RERA
WA5% » METAE S
wIETE - AASEEHE
—E—=%=F=+—H
HFEZFAKRBIEER
(TREREREREEZ
NEZSE) KRR
51845 T Bk #49482,000/8 7T
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

iv)  Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group and the Company can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

Liquidity risk table
The Group

Within
1 year
oron
demand
—FRg
HK$:000
T

31 March 2013 ZE-=£Zf=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilties ~ Ffi4E4REE

Trade and other payables e RN FE
Convertible loan notes designated & ARATE)BiTE
as financial liabilties at FYTPL BERRE2RAE

LTIBRERR 200,000

208,516

5.
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b)

More than

1 year

but less than
2 years
ichohetid
BAYRWE
HKS$'000
Tién

MIA(HE)

M ERERE B R RBUR (F)
iv) REEEER

RERRDESERM
o AKRBERRERR
EhBRSEFEBEERNERE
BRERAZKE - BE
SEXBRHES - WK
ERERENB HE

TRBEAEERART]
FTESRABERBRED
B 2FFE - BHIIK
RIBERAEERARRF A
R ERNRZ&F A H
ZEBMBERMBARSR
ERE - IRBENER
TERERE -

MEBET R
FEME

2 years Total
0 undiscounted Carrying
Syears  cashflows amount

MEZE  AERRE
nfE  REER A

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000

Thn Tin Tn

200,000 189,858

208,516 198,374




5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

SRTHE(E)

b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) HEEKREEEHEZERBRE)
(continued)
iv)  Liquidity risk (continued) iv) RBIEEEE(E)
Liquidity risk table (continued) B E LR SZ (E)
The Group (continued) REHE(1E)
Within More than
1 year 1 year 2 years Total
oron  butlessthan to  undiscounted Carrying
demand 2 years S5years  cash flows amount
—ERg; BE—F MEZ  AHBRS
EEX  BORWE k2 mEEH KA
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAL TAL TAL
31 March 2012 —E--§=fA=1+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 34 & REE
Trade and other payables R ERREMERNTE 12,202 - - 12,202 12,202
Amount due to an intermediate s —mane
holding company G 40 - - 4 40
Convertible loan notes designated REARATEFIFLE
as financial liabilties at FVTPL ERNEE e BAE
LABRERZ - 200,000 - 200,000 213,889
1220 200000 - o2 26131
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

iv)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity risk table (continued)

MIA(HE)

b) MBEREEBRRBEK(H)

iv) RBEEER(E)

REBETERIE (E)

The Company AT
Within ~ More than
1 year 1 year PATCEIS Total
oron butless than 0 undiscounted Carrying
demand PATETES 5years  cash flows amount
—Fpg  BB-F MEE  ABEES
EEX (EORWE it:3 hEAR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TiEx TiEx TAT TAT
31 March 2013 “E-=Fzf=t-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 344 REE
Trade and other payables R ETREMERNE 1,192 1,192 1,192
Convertible loan notes designated KT BRATEIFTE
as financial liabilties at FYTPL BRNEE 2 HERE
LITHAREFNZ 200,000 200,000 189,858
201,192 201,192 191,050
Within More than
1 year 1 year 2 years Total
oron  but less than to  undiscounted Carrying
demand 2 years Syears  cashflows amount
—ERy BEF MEE  REREE
EEX  BIRRE nE jigsd HKHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Fhr Thn TR TR
31 March 2012 “E--§=fA=1+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilties 4 4REE
Trade and other payables ERERREMENTIE 1,084 - - 1,084 1,084
Amount due to an intermediate RN ER
holding company ARIFIE 40 - - 40 40
Convertible loan notes designated & AIRATE]BiTE
as financial iabilties at FVTPL BRERRE 2RAE
LTARERE - 200,000 - 200,000 213,889
1,124 200,000 - 201,124 215,013




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ # 3R 3% Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

v)

Credit risk

The Group

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

The Company

The directors of the Company consider that there
is no significant credit risk on receivables from
subsidiaries given their strong financial background
and good credibility.

o.

ﬁmﬂlﬁ(nﬁ)
M EREEBERBIR(E)

b)

v)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 817 & &R i =%
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-=5=ZF=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c)

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than convertible loan notes
designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis;

o the fair value of the convertible loan notes
designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL are
estimated using Binomial Model, as set out in note
28.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

5. TEMTR(H)

c)
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AFE
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PR R R MR

arch 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c) Fair value (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position (continued)
The Group and the Company

Level 1
E—&
HK$’000
FE T

Convertible loan notes  $55E &A1& A F{EFI B
designated as financial WAEE N ERIE 2
liabilities at FVTPL SRLBE 2 TR

EMIT A
©) ATHEE)

RUMBRARERZ A TFEHFE

(4%)
AEERALA]

31/3/2013
—Z—=%=A=1+—H
Level 2 Level 3
-~ E=
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FTEx

Total
BEt
HK$’000
T

EXE 189,858 189,858
31/3/2012
—E——%=H=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FE— E-H E= #Et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

FAT FHT FAT FAT
Convertible loan notes  #57E A1 A FESIFR
designated as financial WEIBRNEIE 2
liabilities at FVTPL S RAEZ AR

TR = = 213,889 213,889
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.
c) Fair value (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position (continued)
The movement during the year in the balance of financial
liability of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

Convertible loan notes (note 28): AR EHZ 45 (Ff3E28) :

EMIT A
©) ATHEE)

RUBRARERZ A TFEFE

(4%)

F=RATEHEZ S MA KL
2 ENEBIT -

The Group and the Company
AEEREAT

2013
—g-=

HK$’000

T

At beginning of the year REH]

Fair value change (credited)/charged 825 (5 A), /1%~
to the profit or loss, included in a NEEZE - G AGE
line item of consolidated statement 2 EWziz<* 2 HEFA1EE
of comprehensive income

Gain on translation of convertible loan & ASNEFI(E 2 AT #%
notes denominated in a foreign EREEANGEEEE Y
currency into the functional currency, W28 @ st AT E R
included in administrative expenses

Total (gain)/loss included in FTAF AR EE 2
profit or loss for the year (Uezk) /e
Exchange adjustment arising on RENEEEE BEF| G

translation of functional currency to  FREE4E K& B H i 2 E A
presentation currency and charged & 2 SNE F %8
to other comprehensive income

At end of the year RER

Total (gain)/loss for the year included 5T A7 25 HA RS 45 R B B4

in profit or loss for financial liability B4 g8 & 2 4% 7k &8
held at the end of reporting period ZERNUR), EREsE

Included in other comprehensive FTABEREER A2 W

income arising on translation of BETES 2 Bty
functional currency to presentation 2HEEKA
currency
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213,889

(24,031)

(725)

(24,756)

725

189,858

(24,756)

2012

HK$000
TAT

201,186

12,703

(8,457)

4,246

8,457

213,889

4,246

8,457




6. TURNOVER 6. EXHE

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable BEEEAEEHEEERTHINER
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers, less WERE RITINBERIGEF R 2D
returns, discounts allowed and value added tax. An analysis of UG G FEWNFRIBREE - REFE 7 Z X528
the Group’s turnover is as follows: AT

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TET

Sales of coal $HE K 165,041 190,974

7. OTHER REVENUE 7. HtA

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET

Interest income on bank deposit RITHER 2 F WA 2,599 1,117
Others Hib 223 296

2,822 1,413
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments, based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker who are also
the executive directors, for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, is more specifically focused
on the types of goods delivered and services provided by
the Group’s operating divisions. The Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

i) coal mine business — engages in mining and sales of
coal; and

if) others — included provision of management services
and sales of clocks and other office related products,
which were not significant as a reportable segment of
the Group since the year ended 31 March 2011. The
operations of this segment were disposed of during the
year ended 31 March 2012.

a) Segment revenue and results
The following tables present the turnover, results and
expenditure of the Group’s reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2013

PEER
AEBERKEDFERASEERRTEE
BREELERRE(ENANTE
B)mE 2 ERETON - AHEE
AEEREDEMRNERKATIRE
RS2 5R - Eitt - ARERERS
B TSR 2RI B85 2 (& R AT R
BT

) ORBEER -NERRARKLE
g R

i) Et-pEREEERERIEE
BrEAREMHAZTHEER
(B#EZE=_ZE—F=A=+—
HIEFEUR TBAEBEEKR
ARESLE) WHEZEBE
REE-ZET——E=A=+—H
IFFEER -

a) SNEWHERESR
TREJNAKEAHRENE &
XE - RELAFAX -

BE-—T—=F=A=t+-—AHL
EE

Coal mine
business
ot £
HK$’000

THET

Segment Turnover: DEEERE
Sales to external customers HE FHINE S 165,041
Segment results DHEEE (34,419)
Interest income B U A
Change in fair value of 18 AR A TESIBRI I

convertible loan notes BEanNREzemBE s

designated as financial TMBRERERE AFE

liabilities at FVTPL el
Central administration costs AR SR {TERAK 2N
Loss before tax BrEERTE R
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Others
Hoth
HK$’000
F#ET

Total
4z
HK$’000
FHT
165,041

(34,419)

2,599

24,031
CRED)

(16,983)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ %5 & Mt =%
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BE—Z-=F=A=1+—HLFEUUTETAEN)

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

a)

Segment revenue and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2012

8.

PTEER(E
a) NEBRERFEER(E
BE—Z——F=HA=t+—-AHL
FE
Coal mine
business Others Total
BEIESETS HAtb FEES

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET TET

Segment Turnover:
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Interest income

Change in fair value of
convertible loan notes
designated as financial
liabilities at FVTPL

Central administration costs

Profit before tax

TRERE
HETHINEP

7 ERE

SN

BE AR A HEIRRAL
BaRNREZEREEL
ABREREEZ A FE

FRITHAAR

B At A

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies stated in
note 3. Segment result represents the profit/loss of each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ emoluments, interest income, change
in fair value of convertible loan notes designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

190,974 = 190,974

74,922 (350) 74,572

1,117

(12,703)
(7,849)

55,137

RENEZ SRR EM Sl 2 A
SEEHBORAR - 2 BEEGERERE
DHRITBEA - BREZHE - 7
BYWA - HEERBRAFEIIRLAER
BAREZEMBEIAIBREERE
B NFEEBHES B G, E
1B R ERSERKRBF ERE
BIEERREME ZTA
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment
information

Amounts included
in the measure of

segment profit or loss
or regularly provided
to the chief operating
decision maker:
Additions of property,

plant and equipment

Depreciation and
amortisation
Impairment loss on
intangible assets
Write down of
inventories
Interest income
Income tax credit

BE
DREE
RN 2 BE

REE

af

DERAE
Ree#n 2 AR
mafm

Hvn BER
TAD R M B
AEHEHAEE

RERRERHTZ
B

NEME - BER
%—lx}}

IrE K

BV EERERR
7 &MU

FEWA
PSR

Coal mine
business
RIE R
HK$’000

TFHET

221,504

48

16,473

49,928

15,058
(524)
(6,803)
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2REER ()
b) HEAERAMR

BE-E—=%=A=+—HL

FE

Others Unallocated
Hit KREgHE D
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

205,043

209,020

P

Total
ok
HK$°000
FET

221,504
205,043

426,547

43,153
209,020

252,173

958
16,851
49,928
15,058

(2,599)
(6,803)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B #& R R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=-A=t—HLEFEGTEBITREMN)

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

b)

D EER (&
b) HEEER&RE)

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_Z——H£=HA=+—H1
FE
Coal mine
business Others  Unallocated Total
BEEZETS Hith ReedE o k)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
T FAT FAIT FHT
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 201,439 - - 201,439
Unallocated assets REe# D 2 BE - - 258,853 258,853
Total assets BEE 460,292
Liabilities =
Segment liabilities SHEEE 28,008 - - 28,008
Unallocated liabilites — ReElEn ~ B1&E - - 248,809 248,809
Total liabilities =N 276,817
Other segment HitnpEER
information
Amounts included FFAD I E N S EE
in the measure of st EHmEE
segment profit or loss  EERBERME
or regularly provided ~— &%8 :
to the chief operating
decision maker:
Additions of property, HREWE - HE &
plant and equipment & 253 - 644 897
Depreciation and FEREH
amortisation 11,202 - 5 11,207
Reversal of impairment #8724 E& R (B 18
loss on intangible (o]
assets (39,733) - - (89,733)
Reversal of write down 17 & $ifi s 2o
of inventories (17,900) - - (17,900)
Loss on disposal HEWE - BEK
of property, plant Bidicd i
and equipment 6 - - 6
Interest income FEMA (735) - (382) (1,117)
Income tax expense  FiEFiEY 11,420 = = 11,420
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B #& 3R &R M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.
b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets other than deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets are allocated to operating
segments. Assets used jointly by segments are
allocated in proportion to the revenues earned by
individual segments; and

- all liabilities other than amount due to an
intermediate holding company, deferred tax
liabilities, convertible loan notes designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL and other corporate
liabilities are allocated to operating segments.
Liabilities for which segments are jointly liable are
allocated in proportion to segment assets.

c) Geographical information
The Group’s revenue from external customers by location
of operations and information about its non-current
assets* by location of assets are detailed below:

Hong Kong

L

2013 2012
“E--F bl
LG HK$'000
Ti#n TET

Sales to external customers  $YEFHINEE -

DEEN (&

b)

c)

SEEERGRGE)
REZESBRRENE S BRD
RER :

- REEHEEERHEMA
RIEEIN  FIBEENK
ERENE - pEARE
P2 B ER B R 2 8 AT Bk
sz LEBIDES - &

- BREM—MEHhNERAR
RIE  RERBEE - 1B
EREATENRLAEE
sAREZERMBEZA
BEERERNEMAF
BEHN FERENEZR
REDRR - DR AR
ZEBERSBREELDS
[

AEERBHINE P 2 W= (3R
EEMEE D) REBIERDE
ERNERREEMEE S)F
M

PRC (other than HK)

(place of domicile) Total
E(TEEEE)
(Fiest) ]

PIK] 2012 2013 2012
- Sl T —F b Bkl —T——

HK$'000 EEGICVOON HK$'000 EICIV0Y

el TR Rl TR

190,974 190,974
156,049 156,700

Non-current assets EnEEE 651
* Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and security
deposit.

d) Information about major customers
For the year ended 31 March 2013, there was no
individual customer contributed more than 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, a single customer
of the coal mine business of the Group with revenue
contributed to the Group amounting to approximately
HK$20,342,000 had individually accounted for over 10%
of the Group’s total revenue.
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d)

* FRBEETBEBBLEHRE
ERRERS

EHRETEEZPZEHR
RNEE-—E—=F=HA=+—8H
WHFE - BEENEFhAEE
#UZE10%A E o

RBE-_E—=—F=A=+—
BLEFE  AEEEEEKZ
B-RPAAEERZERY
20,342,000/ 7T * [ERIH A EE
WBUTEE10% A E o
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press in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

arc
E—=FE-A=t—-HILFEGUTETREMN)

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMRAX
2013 2012
== s =l
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Interest expenses on bank advances ARAFANBEHEEN
wholly repayable within five years IRITERF S
— interest expenses on bills receivables  — B BLIR FERITHIEIN E 1
discounted to banks MEFX =
10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 10. FrSBL(IR%R) BIX
The Group
rEE

2013 2012
—E—= il
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFEIT FAT

Tax (credit)/expenses comprises: HEGER) B EE

Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNEH
— current year —RFE -
Tax in other jurisdictions HEm Rl AR 2 BB
— current year —RNEE 12,419 2,944
— (over)/under-provision in prior years —BEEERE(GRZ)/
R (261) 373
12,158 3,317
Deferred tax (Note 30) EIERIB (KT3E30) (18,961) 8,103
(6,803) 11,420
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in the HRBE_Z—=FKk_F——-F=
consolidated financial statements as there was no estimated A=1T—HIMEFEAR  LE/IRE
assessable profits being derived from Hong Kong for both BB AT ERBURR - B R AR
years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012. Where there is Hong BRI B BFETEL BE -
Kong assessable profits, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated WMBIRE BB 2 BRI - BIES
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits. FIB T IR ETE R R A2 16.5% 2R
FTE o
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise BIEPEAREMBECEMGHE
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of ([EZEFRBRE]) REERGBREZ
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for EHEIEA  PRNEARMEFEZ
both years. HEH25% °
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10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued)
Pursuant to the laws and regulations in the PRC, one of
the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC is entitled to
exemption from PRC income tax in the first two years from the
first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction of PRC
income tax for the following three years. The subsidiary was
eligible to the above tax concession policy commencing from 1
January 2007 until 31 December 2011.

The tax (credit)/expenses for the year can be reconciled to
the (loss)/profit before tax per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

10. FRBH(IER), B ()
BB BERERRG - AEBRFE
ey Heh — B A E B H e EE
MEFERTEME R FE
Fr5fi - HE=F 2R BEATEF AR
o ZMBATE ST +F—A—
ARE—"FT—F+_A=+—HF
& AT RBUR 2 B °

AEERE(ES)  BREGAEE
W5 R R R BB (BTIR) /4 2 HHEE
T

(Loss)/profit before tax

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before tax,
calculated at the rates applicable to
(loss)/profits in the countries concerned

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes

Tax effect of deductible temporary
difference previously not recognised

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Tax effect of temporary differences
and tax losses not recognised

(Over)/under-provision in prior years

Effect of concessionary tax rate

Tax (credit)/expense for the year

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
== —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEx FET
BRELAT(ESIE) S5 T (16,983) 55,137
RREAERRES(BB), (5,674) 15,284
w2 AR E R
(B518),/ &Mz 8&HE
TMEMBIR S 2 % 4,862 4,690
2
B ARER 2 TR R (4,495)
ERIBBTE
BARBMA Z BT (4,425) (236)
21
KR EHF =5 KT8 (1,305) (2,143)
Bz MG E
BEFE(BERE), (261) 373
BETE
BEBRZFE (2,053)
RNEERIEBEIER),FX (6,803) 11,420
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ress in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—HIEFEATRTREN.)

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

FR(ER)ER

FRUBE) SaFEHR GIA)T

FII&IR

2013
—Zg—=

HK$’000
FTERT

Amount of inventories sold
Write down/(reversal of write down)
of inventories

Cost of inventories sold

Staff costs (excluding directors’
remuneration (Note 15)):

Basic salaries and allowances

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Less: Amounts capitalised in inventories

Amounts included in cost of sales
Auditor’s remuneration

— audit services

— other services

Operating leases charge on rented
premises

Net exchange gain on financial liabilities
at FVTPL

Other net exchange loss

Loss on disposal of property,

HEFEZSHE

TFE MR, (B EIHUR)

HEFEZHRA

BTN (ZESMEERIN)
(Mf5E15)

BEAR S K=

RIRRE TR S R

e
BB

B REFEENMENE R

FEAHER AT
2R B <
- ZBBRT
- HAb AR

HEMENKEHE

R

BAHESRAL RSN ERIE
Z & RBIEZ a3

H A0 X 1RFER

HEWE  BER&REZ

120,973
15,058

136,031

8,306
744

9,050
4,053

12,798
(6,497)

6,301

748
130

878
2,076

(725)

790

2012

HK$’000
TR

163,308
(17,900)

145,408

5,691
507

6,198
4,041

7,166
(1,945)

5,221

540
125

665
1,854

(8,457)

7,899

plant and equipment gl
Interest income on financial assets not & AF(EF R Bz (2,599) (1,117)
at fair value through profit or loss BRIz SREEHEMA
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12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12.

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
includes a profit of $16,209,000 (2012: $25,734,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

13. DIVIDEND 13.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14.

a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

R BFER AEIEREF

AAGHEEABREERAEENBE—
HERARBHMBERREEN R
16,200,000 T (=T — = F :
25,734,000/ 7T) °

R E
REE-E—=F=A=+—HILF
EARERMNMEZZRMNRE - M
BREHHEERARMERZZ RN T
ARBE(ZE—=F : &) -

SR (EE) BRI
a) BREXEF

RRABEE ABIEFAZRER
(B18),/BRITIMRE T 5 SRt
=

2013 2012
—2-= —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THAT

(Loss)/profit (B518) %87
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of FUGTESRERET 2
basic earnings per share (E518) /5% F
((Loss)/profit for the year (RRRHEE A
attributable to owners of FE(HE),
the Company) )

Weighted average number of ZERMETITH
ordinary shares

Weighted average number of AUGESRER
ordinary shares for the purpose of  (JE18), /B H| 7 LBk
basic (loss)/earnings per share Dn#E 58X
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PR R R MIEE

press in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

=A==t - HLEFEGATETREM.)

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 14. BR(E8), B (E)
b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share b) SEE(EE) B
The calculation of the diluted (loss)/earnings per share RAEHAE ANEEFAESRES
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is (EB18) B JEE 5| &Est
based on the following data: &
i)  (Loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners ) AQAFAEEANEEEE (S
of the Company (diluted) 8]) ()

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FET

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable B A FE(EFEE

to owners (E518), &7 (10,180) 43,717
Fair value (gain)/loss of convertible AJ#2ARE R ER 2

loan notes NFE(KE) B8 (24,031) 12,703
Exchange gain on convertible loan A3k & EiE 2

notes b 5 e (725) (8,457)

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners  #45 A (G (E518)

(diluted) S () (34,936) 47,963
ii)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares i) EEBRMETEHEGHE)
(diluted)
2012
—E——4F
Weighted average number FRATESRER
of ordinary shares for the purpose  (J&18), /B A7 & @Ak
of basic (loss)/earnings per share 5% 765,373,584 765,373,584
Effect of conversion of convertible B AR E R EE 2
loan notes 2 Fefo[oNeloloMoloJol 1,000,000,000
Weighted average number AT ESREE
of ordinary shares for the purpose  (E518) /& F| 2 EL:@i%
of diluted (loss)/earnings per share  JN#EFHEL A WVCIRYENI 1,765,373,5684
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 15. EZERSREEASME
EMOLUMENTS

a) Directors’ emoluments a) EEM&
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2012: BN ERAEB(ZE—ZF :
six) directors were as follows: RNE)EEZBZME0T :
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-ZE-—=f=A=t+—-HL
FE

Other emoluments

HAub <&

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits

and other scheme
benefits contributions Total

2 3:l ERER
#He RHEMWER ST IR b
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET FET FET

Executive directors: #[{TEXE :

Lo Fong Hung AL
Wang Xiangfei EAR
Kwan Man Fai A

Independent non- BIEEIT
executive directors: EXE :
Wong Man Hin, =X

Raymond
Lam Ka Wai, Graham  #Z &l
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey — FRi2fE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R M s

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=-A=t—HLEFECGTEBITREMN)

16.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2012

15. EERSREEASHE (E)

a) EEM&(HE)
BE-—ZE——-—F=A=t+—H1L

FE
Other emoluments
Hib<
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
e 2R RIREF
e REAMEFR FTEIfHR ks

HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT

HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAET

Executive directors: #{T&= :

Lo Fong Hung B
Wang Xiangfei F A
Kwan Man Fai A0
Independent non- B EHIT
executive directors: EE :
Wong Man Hin, |
Raymond

Lam Ka Wai, Graham  #RZ &
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey  [RiB1E

Except Ms. Lo Fong Hung has agreed to waive her
director’s fee during the year ended 31 March 2012,
there was no arrangement under which directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years

ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

— 240 12 252
140 100 & 245
240 — - 240
240 - - 240
240 - - 240
860 340 17 1,217

BE—_ T =FR-_T——F=

A=t—HLEE BESA
TERBHRPBREREE T

——F=A=t+-AILEEIE

SR BEEEHEXKFE
IR MBS 2 228 -
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

b) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2012: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments
of the remaining two (2012: three) highest paid individuals
were as follows:

15. EERSREEAEME(E)

b)

Salaries, allowances and e M REM
other benefits &)

Retirement benefits scheme IRIRRAFT B R
contributions

The emoluments of two (2012: three) highest paid
employees fall in the following band:

Nil - HK$1,000,000 L %1,000,000/8 7T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ TE
1,500,000 7T

c) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the
two years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012.
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SREEAEME
RARERER=RHFALE =
Z(ZT——F : MB)BAAA
B EBSBERLEX - T
ME(ZFE——F : ZR )&=
AL ZBET -

2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FET
1,291

28

1,319

CZR)EEH
BEZMEN T 5B EE -

Number of individuals

REE-_ZT—=F=A=+—H
F—E——F=A=+—HIW
BFEE  AEBWERAARQRE
E A B mm T AT EAEA
SUMERREMBARSEE MR
REER 2 RE) - MEAKEL
BEERAE(E o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ % %5 % i 5F
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BE-—Z-=F=A=1+—HLFEUUTBETAEN)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V¥ - HERRZ®E
The Group KE
Furniture,
Leasehold equipment
land and Plant and and motor
buildings machinery vehicles Total
HELHE B
BF BEREE RERAE kel
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL THT THT
Cost A
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FMA—H 8,235 42,349 34,565 85,149
Exchange realignment B 5 58 343 805 159 1,307
Additions AE 36 59 802 897
Disposals & - - 43) 43)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR - (23,023) (31,027) (54,050)
At 31 March 2012 R-_E——%=f=+—H 8,614 20,190 4,456 33,260
Exchange realignment [ 5 R 35 82 23 140
Additions INE = 40 918 958
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=fA=1+—H 8,649 20,312 5,397 34,358
Accumulated depreciationand ~ BiTERE#H
amortisation
At 1 April 2011 R-E——FMA—H 978 26,099 31,727 58,804
Exchange realignment fEE 34, 51 176 46 273
Charge for the year KEEXH 519 2,581 941 4,041
Eliminated on disposals HER SR - - (37) (37)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR - (23,023) (31,027) (54,050)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=A=+—H 1,548 5,833 1,650 9,031
Exchange realignment B 5 3% 8 39 12 59
Charge for the year AEET M 527 2,619 907 4,053
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=FA=1+—H 2,083 8,491 2,569 13,143
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=f#=A=+—H 6,566 11,821 2,828 21,215
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=F=+—H 7,066 14,357 2,806 24,229
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

16. #I3% ~ BB KR E (&)

The Company P /NS
Furniture and
equipment
RMRRE
HK$’'000
T
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2011 R-ZT——FHH—H 63
Exchange realignment HE 5 P 14
Additions NE 644
Disposals HE (19
At 31 March 2012 R=E==F=H=—E 702
Exchange realignment BE 5, = 8
Additions NE 910
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 1,620
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation = RiHITE R EH
At 1 April 2011 R-ZZE——FHmHA—H 63
Exchange realignment i AR 2
Charge for the year REF T H 5
Disposal HE (19
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 51
Exchange realignment FE 5 A28 2
Charge for the year REETH 378
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 431
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 1,189
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 651
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ress in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

UFETREN)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
The above property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term
of the leases or 3.33%

10% to 25%

10% to 25%

Leasehold land and buildings

Plant and machinery
Furniture, equipment and
motor vehicles

The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land and building is
as follows:

16. ¥I3% ~ BB KR E (&)

EilE - BB RREBAEREIET
S RETIRINE -

HETMFE 1% & F H5k3.33%
BF ZEEsEE
BR= M i 2% 10%%E25%

R RER 10%E25%
e

HE L MR TFRREESMAT

Outside Hong Kong, held under medium TR &B BN -
term lease EREBENEE

The Group
HEE
2013 2012
—E—=F ek
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FHT
7,066
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS BEEE
The Group
AEE
Exploration
and Patents
evaluation Mining and
assets rights  trademarks Total
BRR -y
TMEEE g RER FoE ]
(Notel, il &) (Notel, i, & iv)
(B ez ~ i Biv) (PR ~ i Reiv)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THT THL
Cost EEZF
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—H 46,145 101,052 663 147,860
Exchange realignment Eﬁaﬁﬁé 1,920 4,205 = 6,125
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR - - (663) (663)
At 31 March 2012 R-F——#=fA=+—H 48,065 105,257 - 153,322
Addition NE 1,659 - - 1,659
Exchange realignment [ 5% 204 426 = 630
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=f=A=+—H 49,928 105,683 - 155,611
Accumulated amortisation and Kt EERRE
impairment
At 1 April 2011 R-ZZ—FMA—H 13,255 38,462 663 52,380
Exchange realignment fE 5 R 451 1,250 - 1,701
Reversal of impairment loss BERESE (13,706) (26,027) = (39,733)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR = = (663) (663)
Charge for the year NEETH = 7,166 = 7,166
At 31 March 2012 R-_E——%=f=+—H = 20,851 - 20,851
Exchange realignment [ 3 AR - 157 - 157
Impairment loss REBSE 49,928 = = 49,928
Charge for the year KEESH - 12,798 - 12,798
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=f=A=+—H 49,928 33,806 - 83,734
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2013 =) - 71,877 - 71,877
At 31 March 2012 N-ZE——%=A=+—-H 48,065 84,406 - 132,471
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ %5 & Mt =%
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BE=

17.

F=F=A=1t-ALFECATETREM.)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Patents and trademarks rights have definite useful lives and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over five years.

Notes:

i)

i)

The mining rights and the exploration and evaluation assets acquired
as part of a business combination during the year ended 31 March
2010 were initially recognised at their fair values on acquisition with
reference to professional valuation which was based on discounted
cash flow method with reference to the operating environment of
each of the operating entities.

Mining right

The management conducted impairment review of the mining rights
at the end of each reporting period with reference to the professional
valuation which was based on value-in-use calculations. The
calculations used cash flow projections based on financial budgets
prepared by management covering a five-year period with growth
rate not exceeding the long-term average growth rate of coal mine
business, and discount rate of 38% (2012: 29%) using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the cash generating unit (“Mining CGU”),
being the subsidiary operates under the mining right. Cash flows
beyond 5 year period have been extrapolated using zero growth
rate per annum. Changes in selling prices and direct costs were
based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the
market. During the year ended 31 March 2013, with reference to the
professional valuation which was based on the discounted future
cash flow to be generated, the management expected that the
recoverable amount of this Mining CGU exceeds its carrying amount.
Accordingly, no impairment loss is required.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, due to the increase in
average selling price of coal which resulted in increase in gross
profits and operating income from this Mining CGU, and with
reference to the professional valuation which was based on the
discounted future cash flow to be generated, the management
expected that the recoverable amount of this Mining CGU exceeds
its carrying amount. Therefore, a reversal of impairment loss of
approximately HK$26,027,000 was allocated to the mining right
which was recognised in profit or loss and included in reversal of
impairment loss on intangible assets.

17.

AN ﬂ/ﬁF (II‘E)
BMREEEEEAERFHER
WIREBER IF R -

i)

BE_Z-ZTF-_A=t+—HLFERK
Eﬁ?%’k’%‘%%%&@)ﬁ%&aﬂﬁﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁ%
B —HD  UD2RESLERRBELE
RRECUBRREREEEHZEEM
1B IFAEER 2 A FERER -

BRuERE
EI2 BN B HAR A RS 2 R (4 ERD
RIREAEETE R AFH 2 BEME
IR TTRER - ZrtEERE
RAEEE AR S EE BN (BRERE
TR EZMBAR ([ FEReELE
L)) FRE AFHBRBEZRER
E¥EA W2BITRBEBES R
HEIRER  REARBRIKERSE
A BT 2 47 B AT Eé‘%éiZi%ﬁ%‘E—i;Faﬁfﬁ
BERFERR 2B E38% (=
——F 1 29%) ° ﬁiﬁﬁfaﬁféziﬁum
ERBETFTHREMEE - EERERE
%N @J& Erf‘? 11l K2 364 Th 35 oK 2R 8
PoESE BHEZZT—=F=A
;+f5¢¢ﬁ ZPRARTE £ 2 BhIR

REBREREBEH 2 EXMER - BE
EBERZREREL S AkES

HHRIBEREE - Bl - BAFLRE
B -

H= —FZAZ=T—RALEE-
mﬁﬁmiﬁﬁfiﬁagﬁa%%ﬁ
SELBNEAZEMNREE Kamig
i REBUFTEA ZBRRAKIBE RE
Rz BEAEE  EEREEEHRZERE
WEEABN A ESERBHIER
8 - Elt - BEREREX26,027,000
BITEDEEREET N BSER - 2
3| BAE & ERE R 1E D o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B #& 3R &R M s

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—-HLFECGCTEITREM)

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

i)

Exploration and evaluation assets

It represented exploration right possessed by the Group which the
Group owns a priority to transfer the exploration right to mining right.
For the year ended 31 March 2012, the management conducted
impairment review of the exploration and evaluation assets with
reference to the professional valuation which was based on value-in-
use calculations. The calculations used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets prepared by management, which expected
that the mining right would be obtained and mining activities would
be commenced in 2015, covering a five-year period with growth
rate not exceeding the long-term average growth rate of coal mine
business, and discount rate of 24.7% using pre-tax rates that
reflected the then current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the cash generating unit (“E&E
CGU”). Cash flows beyond 5 year period were extrapolated using
zero growth rate per annum, which was based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs were based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.
Due to the increase in average selling price of coal which resulted
in increase in gross profits and operating income from this E&E
CGU, and with reference to a professional valuation which was
based on the discounted future cash flow to be generated, the
management expected the recoverable amount of this E&E CGU
exceeds its carrying amount. Therefore, a reversal of impairment loss
of approximately HK$13,706,000 was allocated to the exploration
right which was recognised in profit or loss and included in reversal
of impairment loss on intangible assets during the year ended 31
March 2012.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the exploration and evaluation
assets were fully impaired in profit or loss based on a professional
valuation which concluded that no defined or reliable future
economic benefit could be drawn from the E&E CGU due to the
following facts and circumstances:

- the exploration right has been renewed twice and the expiry
date of it would be on 20 February 2014;

- according to a legal opinion obtained by the Group, the
exploration right can only be renewed twice under PRC law
and regulation, and no further renewal for period beyond 20
February 2014 can be obtained;

- the management re-assessed the status and considered
that the Group is not able to obtain a mining right prior to the
expiry of the exploration right; and

- that no defined or reliable future economic benefit could
be drawn based on the current progress relating to the
Management Restructuring Plan (as defined in note v below).

U7
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BILEE(R)
BiisE « (4%)

i)

BRRIHEE
HEASEER 2 HFEE  REBES
ISR IR BRI 2 (BT - BE
T HF=RA=+—HILEFE BE
B2 R ERMBIRE A EEFTE AR
H2EEHEENRERTHEEET
BERE - ZAtEERIERHEREA
REEFEBUMRE AFHMEEE 2
WemeTal - WIS FREE K&
HREHER_E—RERE - YRR
THRBEBEER 2 RPTHERE - &
AR ER R IR S EA BN ([#)
BN AHMEIR S EAEN ) 2R AR B AT
TG 2 EEREEERETERBRZ
FRATBRIRR24.7% - AFHPE%B ZES
RERBEGFTEREIRITEERTEA
e - EENEBEXNAESIBAED
RETISARREE 2 TEHE - BRE
R EE AR BBL TR R EE
SEABNESZ EFREE RSIE
- 2RUMEEZBAKES RS
EHZEEME - EEEREZHFER
FHEIR S EA BNz IR E S EEERE
BREE - Al REE=-F——F=
A=+—RHILLFEE - BOREESED
13,706,000/ CE D ELE BV R - R
BEER 20 BB A ERER B
@c

BHE_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE"
BREHEEECSREEXMAENER
RBEORME - AULHER - AEEBR&RE
EEEWRMIGEREELEM - BUS
AR A SERVAS AR - RN EAEIAT
=ERER

- BREEEEMR XHRZ
T-ME—A=+HIH

- RBRBEAEEMGSHNERER
NRBDERRRET @ BiRE
BrAIEEAMAR  WERRZ-F
—ME-A-THEEELBE

BEVRAE

- EBEEENIGHER RBRAE
KEREER B R IE R HIRTEUS
RuERE R

- HERNEBREEFE(ERRTX
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B f& R &R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

iv)

v)

BIEE(R)
BiisE : (%)

Details of the Group’s mining right and exploration right are as iv) REBHKBEERBIFREFBNOT :
follows:

Mines Locations Expiry dates Note
% bk R Pt =
Mining right

ERuEE

Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine Bei Ta Mountain (1535 111) 30 June 2018 =

SRR R = Qitai County (27 & )

Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region

GhBgEmBeaR)
MR ERE AR

TAak
JE#L
Exploration right
BhRAE
Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine Bei Ta Mountain (£ (11)
SN N RS Qitai County (&1 & 8)

Xingjiang Uygur Autonomous Region

GhiEEmRERE)
MERERERE
Bi=t

gl 11|

Note a): The exploration right represents licence for the right for
exploration in the specified coal area in the PRC. The period
of each exploration licence is 2 years. Based on a legal
opinion, the current exploration licence cannot be further
renewed upon its expiry on 20 February 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Department of Land and
Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region (the “Xinjiang Land
Department”) informed the Group that pursuant to the instructions of
the National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC, the
Xinjiang Land Department is planning a management restructuring of
different coal mines in the Xiheishan Mining Area (the “Management
Restructuring Plan”), where the Group’s Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine
(the “Kaiyuan Mine”) and Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine (the “Zexu Mine”)
are situated.

On 14 March 2012, a restructuring proposal (the “Restructuring
Proposal”) was issued by the People’s Government of Mulei Kazak
Autonomous County, where the Group’s Kaiyuan Mine is located,
to the Administrative Bureau of Coal Industry of Changji Prefecture
(the “Changji Administrative Bureau”). According to the Restructuring
Proposal, which is part of the Management Restructuring Plan,
the mining area of the Kaiyuan Mine, where the Group is now
conducting mining activities, is proposed to be increased from 1.158
square kilometers to 4.12 square kilometers, with the estimated
additional coal resources of approximately 131.18 million tones.
In the Restructuring Proposal, it is also stated that the production
capacity of the Kaiyuan Mine will increase from 0.9 million tones per
year to 3 million tones per year.

v)

—2-N\FAA=tH

20 February 2014 a
—E—HmF=-A=+H

Mizka) : BVERERERBEEKRHE
TR ENMTEER - &
HRIER 2 BB AF - 1R
BEEER  BAEMBERRER
RZZE—NFE-_A=+HE
AT REREE -

HE_ T —F=-A=+—HILEE"
FBREREARE T ERE([#iER
TEREDANSAEER  BEFEBEK
BENKEZEGZIET  FEELE
REEE A 2ILEEATRERELE
BEAMRB([EEEMERE])  AEF
ZIRBRER(SRES ) REBE
RIEHE (2B AR ZIER A o

RZZE——F=A+WHE  AEEI
BRESMEZREBERBABAR
BRRAEENERIEXEER(EFE
BEl)ehErez((EdER]) -
REAEREMNE —HFHr s EHE
o ANEEFETREEE 2 SRR
HFREERZR1.158 A REHEE
412FFRE - (HETEINEIRE RN B
13118 B BME - REAZEZET * N5
PSR 2 ERE R T F0.98 BRI
EEFEIEEM -
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) BEEER)
Notes: (continued) s - (48)
v) (continued) v) (8)
On 13 June 2012, Changji Administrative Bureau issued a letter to R-ZE——FA+=H  EFEEH
the Group informing that the increase of mining area was endorsed HKAREE - Heiin s FEEEDE
by the bureau. The letter also stated that the Group’s exploration ZPBIB o ZKEFINE L RN EBIES
right to Zexu Mine will be withdrawn as the condition of the Zexu ZHETREREREARE 2 EK -
Mine does not fulfill the requirement under the Management INEE R NBRES 2 BhIRRE S Y o
Restructuring Plan. The above proposals related to Kaiyuan Mine il SRS KR IBIRS 2 E
and Zexu Mine are currently submitted to the People’s Government RREFTEBATHEAREARBSER
of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region for final approval. As at 31 BEW N_ZE—=F=—A=+—A8K
March 2013 and up to the date of this report, no further update was HEAREAH - ANEEWEEETM
received by the Group. BREEE °
The directors of the Company are of the view that as the above AAREERE LERDEFNEE
proposals are still subject to final approval of the People’s ZRERAREARBNREEL - Lillg
Government of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, it is uncertain BN EENERAMNE o WEEHREH
whether the above changes will be materialised. The Group will B AEBBREB A ERGERMY
engage an independent qualified valuer to value the additional coal FEINEBERETHE -
resources when the final approval is obtained.
18. GOODWILL 18. HHE
The Group
#xm
HK$'000
FAT
Cost A
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and R-ZZE——FmA—H - —F=H
31 March 2013 =t+—BE= -=—:¢:H:+ H 37,469
Impairment RE
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and R-ZE—FWA—HB —ZFE——F=A8
31 March 2013 =+—BARZZE-—=F=ZA=+—H 37,469
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R R M s

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. BHE(E)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination was allocated to
two CGUs that were expected to benefit from that business
combination with reference to professional valuation which
was based on discounted cash flow method with reference
to the operating environment of each of the operating entities.
Goodwill has been allocated to two CGUs for the purpose of
goodwill impairment testing. At the end of the reporting period,
the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to these CGUs is as
follows:

HEBEHRBLHEG2ERKE
ERCRERBRREHARSRE
EETZBREME  HDERIEHSK
XEREBAHZMERSELE
iz - EBREARANS  BECDH
REMERSELSMN - RREHAM
ERE - DEERERSELENLZ
AEREENT

2013 2012

—E—=F =F==_=

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FTHET FBT
Qitai County Zexu Trading Company Limited & &S ZHEZER
(AFEEBEBEEEBRAEERR) /NGRS

(“E&E CGU") IR EESBN]) =
Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal Company NEEZIRKE KB R

Limited (R GZFRERERE TR R) EEAR([HFEES
(“Mining CGU”) EXEEBA]) -

The goodwill arising on acquisition of Qitai County Zexu
Trading Company Limited (37 & 82 /B8 E B R & T2 7)) and
Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal Company Limited (7K £2 2 9l &R
AR E LA F]) was fully impaired during the year ended 31
March 2011.

WEaTaHKEEHEAREERAR
REZIRRRBERAEABMELE
ZEERBE_ZE——F=ZA=1—
B FEERBE
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19. SECURITY DEPOSIT 92

The Group

The balance represents a deposit placed with a bank to
secure the Group’s obligation to restore the environment after
mining. The deposit bears interest at the prevailing bank saving
interest rate and can be withdrawn upon the expiry of the
Group’s mining right and fulfillment of environment restoration

RIFEEE

AEM
RHREASERBITRERERIERR
ZEEMRBITEEZTR - TR
ERZIRITREREMNEGTE - WA KA
SEZHEEERRTRIREERE
FERFIRER ©

obligation.
20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RNBARIZRE
The Company
PN

2013 2012
—E—= =ed—rts
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT THET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD - AR -
Amounts due from subsidiaries RS NGO 153,722 153,701

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non
interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

118 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED @R &REXHFMRAT

153,722 153,701

FEUHI B AR FORREIER - TFT 8
RAMEENRIERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B f& R &R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMB AR ZIRE (HE)
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at ARARZE—=FR_FT—Z=-F=
31 March 2013 and 2012 are as follows: A=1+—B#B2EZWNBRARFE
W
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued shares/
Class of and operation  registered capital Percentage of equity Principal
Name of subsidiary sharesheld MR/ HM SRTRHOEE/  attributable to the Group activities
il PEE FrisRpER REEHE afEL AEEEERERDL TEEK
2012
—T——F
%
Directly held:
EEER
Lasting Power Investments Ordinary BVI US$1 100 Investment
Limited Tk RERTES Es holding
NEREFRAA] REER
Indirectly held:
MERE
Star Fortune International Ordinary BVI US$100 100 Investment
Investment Company Limited &3k RERLES 100%7T holding
(“Star Fortune’) REER
ENEBBIRREBRAR
=Vt
Ming Kei Kai Yuan Investment Ordinary Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 100 Investment
Company Limited Lialk BE 60,000,000/ 7T holding
RESNRREFRAA REER
Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal Registered PRC RMB30,000,000 100 Coal mining and
Company Limited &R H AR%30,000,0007 sales
2 RRERERRFAR FIRRIEERRK
Qitai County Zexu Trading Registered PRC RMB2,000,000 100 Exploration of
Company Limited AR H AK#2,000,0007C coal mine
TREEEEERREENRN RRER
* Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign-owned * RIEDBEAGTT AN BERE
enterprise
# Registered under the laws of PRC as domestic enterprise # RERESAMGT 2B R E
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, ERINRARBTESERATEZER
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally EBREEREEZAEENBAT
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of EERAE FHNNEMKE AR ZER
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result SENERBANTLE °
in particulars of excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as NERFERNEMER - BMEHNBEA
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. AR TR BT ZEIEES -

Annual Report 2013 &3 119



21. INVENTORIES 21. F&
The Group
AEE

2013 2012
—%F-= b
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FAT
Consumables HE M@ 600 2,321
Coal 974 67,677 36,162
68,277 38,483

During the year ended 31 March 2013, write down of
inventories to net realisable value amounted to HK$15,058,000
was recognised in profit or loss. During the year ended 31
March 2012, a reversal of HK$17,900,000 for inventory
written-down in the prior year was recognised in profit or loss as
the Group sold the inventory which had been written down in
prior years at price higher than the carrying amount.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group
rEH

2013
—E—=F
HK$°000
TET

Trade and bills receivables  JEUWEF K& FEIZ 5 735
Prepayments, deposits and  TE{FIE - ##& K&

other receivables H R U GRIE 2,217

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

The Group’s sales to coal customers are largely done on
payment in advance basis. For certain well-established
customers, the Group allows an average credit period of 90
days.
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—E——F
HK$’000

2,952 5,054

BHE-_ZT—=6=ZA=+—81
FERN FTEMRETEEFE
15,058,00078 7o B A B 25 1R  REL
BT —_HF=-ZA=+—HItFE "
HRAEEESREEEZEREE
ERBAFEMRZTE  HRBEAE
F [Z #UR 2 75 & # 18117,900,000/8 7T
PBERFER o

22. EWERKH YRR

The Company
b N
2012 2013 2012
TE-=F ks
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET THETT

THETT

2,499

2,555 102

P 8 M R L At B W R TR TR A AR
—FAROKER R

AEBRRREP ZHERNBOLRE
NRBEREEEDL - RETHRERKZ
EFME  ARE#HEZFHEEH
/0K °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B #& R &R M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. RWERKEMEWFIEE)

Included in the trade and bills receivables are bills AR E R K E R E 2 R =
receivables amounted to approximately HK$684,000 (2012: B 46840008 L (=Z & — ZF
HK$2,348,000) aged within one year. 2,348,00077T) * BRIk A —F N °
At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of the trade RIRE AR - EE R (REE
receivables (presented based on the invoice date) and bills HERZZ) R EWEE (R AE R
receivables (presented based on the issuance date of relevant EHEZ7) (RNkREERER) 28R
bills), net of allowance for doubtful debts was as follows: BT T -
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—=—= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAET
Within 90 days 90K 1,977
91-180 days 91 RE180ANA 522
181 days — 365 days 181K E365K A =
Over 1 year HBim15 _
2,499

a) MWEHEERE - 2ABER
HIRRE < BRI E R & B R &

a) As of the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade and bills receivables that were past due but not

impaired are as follows: BRECAHTAOT :
The Group
A%
Past due but not impaired
Neither past ERHERHBERE
due nor 91 to
Total impaired <90 days 365 days Over 1 year
#aE  KAEA NKE

AHBHE HDIRI0K 365K BB1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAT TR TET TAT

31/3/2013 —T-=%=-f=+—H 735 684 - - 51
31/3/2012 e e = 2,499 2,499 - = =
Trade and bills receivables that were neither past due nor FRunHI B R BIRRE 2 U E 5K
impaired related to wide range of customers for whom T L Ath e U 22 4 B 4 5T ER B /K R
there was no recent history of default. The Group did not B2 BPEM REEIE
hold any collateral over these balances. ML FES A EAERAR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #&$R &R M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t-HLFEGTEITREM

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

a) (continued)

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
at 31 March 2018 related to an individual customer that
has a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment is
necessary as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

b)  Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade

receivables during the year are as follows:

22.

EWE Rk M ERRE(E)

a (&)
R-E—=F=A=+—HBE#®
HERHBEREZ BRETR SR
—ZBARREBDHER T2 @
RAEF - BRMEEERWEEKN
BE)  MzSEKDERENE
e - BIREKBELSR B
EBiEBAELRE - AEEW
EZS RS ATMERSR -

b) FARBKERREEGIZH
(I

Balance at beginning of the year FHEER
Derecognised on disposal of RHEEME QAR

subsidiaries R EHER
Balance at end of the year FIREEGR

23. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group discounted certain bills receivable accepted by
banks in the PRC (the “Discounted Bills”) to a bank to finance
its operating cash flow with a carrying amount in aggregate of
HK$244,000 as at 31 March 2013. The Discounted Bills have
a maturity within six months at the end of the reporting period.
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC and relevant discounting arrangement with the bank, the
holders of the Discounted Bills have a right of recourse against
the Group if the accepting banks default (the “Continuing

Involvement”).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Discounted
Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of the Discounted Bills. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Discounted Bills and
the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Discounted
Bills equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair value of the Group’s Continuing Involvement

in the Discounted Bills is not significant.

23.
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The Group
AEE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
719
(719)

A E R —REIRTTRIRE Z B H BlR
TEMANETRERERRE(TEMRE
B AREKEHRSREBE 1
—E-—=F=A=+—H8 " FSRE
# 18 /3244,0008 7T - N EHEA
HR BMRARERAEAREES -
RIBHBEREENERITRI L 2 HH
BRR LB MEARBEZRITRRN
F o AERMREBERFBEALGSEEE
BERE(BERSEE]D -

EZRA AKECEBAMCMA
SRRy AR EER - Bt - &
EREBERACHREENZEERE
B AREREMARBZREEY
BEEMAEAXNZARK - UKLE
EIEMBRERBENRTRASR - BF
RZERENEEE EFRR A
SECHMRAZBREESEENRT
BEYTERX -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ % %5 % i 5F
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-—=5=F=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

23. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain or
loss on the date of transfer of the Discounted Bills. No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The discount has been made
evenly throughout the year.

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprised bank
balances and cash held by the Group and short-term
deposits amounting to approximately HK$255,620,000
(2012: HK$257,246,000) with an original maturity of three
months or less, while the bank balance and cash held by the
Company amounting to approximately HK$199,515,000 (2012:
HK$207,590,000). The bank balances and bank deposits
carried interest at market rates ranging from 0% to 1.33%
(2012: 0% to 1.45%) per annum.

Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following
amounts denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

23.

24.

BRTMEEE)

TR AKBYENCUAREEER
20 EREMkEkEE - NERE
REREFEESEENFERRW
SHEE - ARMRRCRNEEFE T
AT

BHERBE€EEEHR
AEBZHESMRSEEBEEBEALR
EEFFZRITEHRIBEURER
BB A=A AZEEER
#47255,620,000 T (=T — Z4F :
257,246,000/ 7T) * MARBFEZ
IRITHEHR IR £ 41/5199,515,000/8 7T
(ZZ——4% : 207,590,000/ 7T ) ° iR
THRFRBITFEFEN TOEE1.33E

TE——F QEE145E)2THIBE
FIRETE o

ReMREeFERE B NIAERM
RSB IASNZ INESHEZ SR ¢

The Group The Company
AEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—_Eg—= TE - F e —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T THExT FHET
HK$ BT 207,595 207,590

As at 31 March 2013, the balances that were placed with
banks in the PRC amounted to RMB45,089,000 (equivalent
to HK$56,101,000) (2012: RMB40,067,000, equivalent
to HK$49,652,000). Remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to the exchange controls imposed by the PRC
government.

R-ZEBE—=%=A=+—8 " 7
REBEERNRTZEHRAEARE
45,089,000 7T ( 48 & 7 56,101,000 %
TTI(ZE—=%F : AR® 40,067,000
JC » HE R 49,652,000/8 7T )  EAEH
BN BECBAZHEBFETZIN
P & B FTAR PR ©
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of the trade
payables (presented based on the invoice date) were as

25. BNERRHEMENTE

RBREREERE - BNERIRER
BHEIZS) 2 BRie DA a0 T -

follows:
The Group The Company
REH ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
TE-=F gl — T = elelaeled
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHx FABT FHET FHT
Within 90 days CFNA 658
91-180 days 91 K2 180KK 337
181-365 days 181 RZE365KA 546
Over 1 year BiA1F 29
Trade payables ERTER 1,570
Receipt in advance TEURFRIE 2,152
Value-added tax and non-  JE{ 1S {EFL &
income tax payable JEFTISHE 1,524
Government levies payable  JE B T4 E 26,110
Accrued expenses EETER 1,694
Other payables Hfth e 5RIE 5,252

38,302 26,743

All the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year.

The average credit period of purchases of goods is 180 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

26. AMOUNT DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING  26.
COMPANY

The amount due was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt # 3R 3% Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=-A=t—HLEFEGTEBITREMN)

27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

a)

27. BARf#fE

BB BT
AR E 2 5 A RS 5 2 2
1 R AR IR A
B - ADAEERHD 2

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in FY R ERSBEFHY WO :
the Company’s individual components of equity between
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company b /AN
Convertible ~ Exchange
Share  loannotes  translation  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
TRBES
RiyEE  RERE  ERRE  BABR  ZHER s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TEn T AL TEL ThL
(note ) (note i) (note v) (note vi)
(B3H) i) (Fitv) (P i)
At 1 April 2011 RZE—ENA-A 191,534 - 6,429 128,013 (286,439) 39,537
Profit for the year ERgH = - - - 25,734 25,734
Exchange differences on translation #2745
of functional currency to kv
presentation currency ERER - - 5,203 - - 5,223
Total comprehensive income for ~~ ERZ EMALEZE
the year - - 5,223 - 25,734 30,957
At 31 March 2012 and WZE——F
1 April 2012 =A=t+-Hk
—F-Cf
mA—A 191,534 - 11,652 128,013 (260,705) 70,494
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - 16,209 16,209
Exchange differences on translation % &1 E% A
of functional currency to EX)-1:v4
presentation currency EXES - - 688 - - 688
Total comprehensive income for the ERZEMALE
year - - 688 - 16,209 16,897
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F
=A=t-H 191,534 - 12,340 128,013 (244,496) 87,391
Notes: Pi%E
i) Share premium i) BRE

The application of share premium is governed by Section 40

of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

ERABRNDEEARAR A RE
—NN\—FREEFAOKEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
Movements in components of equity (continued)

The Company (continued)
Notes: (continued)

a)

i)

i)

iv)

v)

Vi)

vii)

Convertible loan notes reserve

The convertible loan notes reserve represents the value
of the unexercised equity component of convertible loan
notes issued by the Company. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with accounting policy set out in note 3(h).

Capital reserve
It represents negative goodwill from acquisitions of
subsidiaries prior to 1 April 2001.

Statutory reserves

Reserve and enterprise expansion funds

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
regulations, all of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
required to transfer part of their profit after tax to the reserve
and enterprise expansion funds, which are non-distributable,
before profit distributions are made. The amounts of the
transfers are subject to the approval of the boards of
directors of these companies in accordance with their articles
of association.

Specific reserve for maintenance and production funds
Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations for coal mining
companies, provision for production maintenance, production
safety and other related expenditures are accrued by the
Group at fixed rates based on coal production volume (the
“Maintenance and production funds”). The Group is required
to make a transfer for the provision of maintenance and
production funds from retained earmings of the subsidiary to
a specific reserve. The maintenance and production funds
could be utilised when expenses or capital expenditures on
production maintenance and safety measures are incurred.
The amount of maintenance and production funds utilized
would be transferred from the specific reserve back to
retained earnings of the subsidiary.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of functional currency
to presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3(p).

Special reserve

The amount in special reserve represents the difference
between the consideration paid for acquiring a further
49% equity interest in Star Fortune and the decrease in
the carrying amount of the non-controlling interests of Star
Fortune.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the issued shares of the
companies being acquired and the value of net assets of the
underlying companies acquired at the time of the Group’s
reorganisation in preparation for its listing in 1995. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company may make
distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus in
certain circumstances.

27. BAK ()
HE S ER S B (4)

AnE (%)
BiRE - ()

a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ % %5 & Mt =%
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-—=5=F=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

b)

c)

27. BAKf#E(1E)

Authorised and issued share capital b) FEERBITERA
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each Amount
BREE
0108 T2
ZAREE 0]
HK$'000
FHIT
Authorised: EIE
Balance at 1 April 2011, RZZE—FMA—H
31 March 2012 and =a=—fE= B —E R
31 March 2013 —E-—=F=A=+—-HZ
e 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BIIRAE -
Balance at 1 April 2011, R-_ZT——FMA—H -
31 March 2012 and —E-——&=-A=1+—HAK
31 March 2013 ZE—=f=A=+—-Hz
LEeR 765,373,584 76,537

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regards to the
Company’s residual assets.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, and to generate sufficient profit to
maintain growth and provide a satisfactory return to its
shareholders.

The management actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders’ returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic condition. In view of this,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividend or the issue of new debt. No
changes were made in the objectives or policies during
the year.

c)

EBRSE AR RBRTREIK
ZBE  WAIRARRIEHELF
B—R—RZHERN - B L AR
ENBARRZRGEESES

TERSES -

aAuRE
FEMERERY EBAER
P o SR R R S AR
SR - AR BRERE SR L
BREE  RARERRAED
% -

EE BRSNS MNEEE
BARRE  AERS IR B &
BT A HBEZ B EEKF
ERRS AR B AN 7 R 2 4 B B AR
[E 2 REVS T - WREEMN
NEB(CHENEBIELAR - B
NI - AEERERIRMNBE
REITHER FEERBREERG
1B - BIRREENF AL E(EL
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

c)

Capital management (continued) c)
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which included trade
and other payables, amount due to an intermediate
holding company and convertible loan notes designated
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital comprises all
components of equity excluding non-controlling interests.

The Group
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March 2013 and 2012
are as follows:

RBaE &
R e oee=
NN R AT

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amount due to an intermediate

holding company ZFE
Convertible loan notes designated as EEARATENRY
financial liabilities at fair value through ERANRIEZ TRl
profit or loss BEZTRREERE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible loan notes designated as BEARATESIRLE
financial liabilities at fair value through BaRiEzepaty
profit or loss BRREREE
Total debt BaE
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W REeRREEEERE
(Note 24) (BfsE24)
Net debt BEFHE
Total equity B
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio KRB FEAEEL X

128 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED @R &REXHFMRAT

27. BAKf#E (&)

BAEE(E)
AEENFERBBLRER
EMEARRBZEE - FLUM
FAREYFRERERHER
B(BRENERREMENK
B BN —RERMERARZRK
THARIEE A A FESIBRIEAE
BERE/eRBEZJRRE
REB)RERE RREFER
B - EABERES 2 FTAMANKE
72 GEEBARERIRIN) ©

AEE
RZEBE—=FR_F——F=A
= t+t—HZFEXRAGBELEN
T

2013 2012
—E—=£ —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
26,743

40

189,858 -
228,160 26,783
213,889

228,160 240,672
(255,620) (257,246)
(27,460) (16,574)
174,374 183,475
N/A FiE A N/A RNiE R



c) Capital management (Continued)

27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 27. BRARf#E(E)

c) HEAXEEH

The Company Y /N |
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March 2013 and 2012 A==t = —— G g
are as follows: =t+—BZzFEREGBLEN
T @
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables and accruals HAth {508 & fE AT & 1,084
Amount due to an intermediate B —FERNERARZ
holding company HIE 40
Convertible loan notes designated as BT ARATEYRTE
financial liabilities at fair value through EBanRlEzemBE s
profit or loss AHRREFRE 189,858 =
191,050 1,124
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible loan notes designated as BT ARATHESRLE
financial liabilities at fair value through BREEeREEr
profit or loss TRREREE 213,889
Total debt Bafg 191,050 215,013
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W ReRREEEERE
(Note 24) (PftzF24) (199,515) (207,590)
Net debt BEFE (8,465) 7,423
Total equity AR 163,928 147,031
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio LA FERB B X N/A RiEH 5%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are RARIEEAMBRTHES
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. EIONEPTHEN 2 B AN E 2R

i o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t-HLFEGTEITREM

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

The Group and the Company

On 14 March 2008, the Company issued zero-coupon
convertible loan notes with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 to Ascent Goal simultaneously upon
completion of the issue and allotment of 400,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each. The notes are denominated in HK$
and entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue of the
notes and their settlement date on 13 March 2011 in multiples
of HK$1,000,000 at a conversion price HK$0.20 (subject to
adjustments) per share. The shares to be issued and allotted
upon conversions shall rank pari passu in all respects among
themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue by
the Company on the date of such allotment and issue. If the
convertible loan notes has not been converted, the Company
shall repay the principal amount of the outstanding convertible
loan notes to Ascent Goal at 13 March 2011.

On 11 February 2011, the Company entered into a deed of
amendment with Ascent Goal, to extend the maturity date of
the convertible loan notes for 36 months and the conversion
period will accordingly be extended for 36 months from 14
March 2011 (date of extension) to 13 March 2014. Apart from
the extension of the maturity date and the conversion period,
all terms of the convertible loan notes remain unchanged from
the original terms.

Following the change of functional currency from HK$ to
RMB, the board of directors is of the view that the convertible
loan notes upon extension of maturity date was no longer
convertible at a fixed for fixed relationship. Accordingly, the
convertible loan notes was designated as a financial liability
at FVTPL and was classified as a non-current liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 March 2011
and 2012.

The convertible loan notes was valued by the directors of
the Company with reference to a valuation report issued by
Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified valuer not
connected to the Group. The decrease in fair value of the
convertible loan notes of approximately HK$24,031,000 have
been recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2013 (2012: increase of HK$12,703,000).

28.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ % %5 % i 5F
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-—=5=F=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (continued)
The assumptions adopted for the valuation of the convertible
loan notes are as follows:

i)

The estimation of risk free rate has made reference to
the yield of Exchange Fund Bill with same duration as the
convertible loan notes;

The estimation of volatility for the underlying share price
has considered the historical price movements of those
companies engaged in similar industry;

The discount rate was arrived at based on the Company’s
credit rating and select comparable corporate bonds
with similar maturity and credit risk to derive the range of
comparable yield to maturity as of date of valuation and
the median range has been adopted.

The fair value of the convertible loan notes was calculated using
the binomial model. Major parameter adopted in the calculation
of the fair value are summarised below:

28.

RREREE(E)
FEMR AT (E
AR SR REHERNZ BRAT

i)

3 B S 2% O A AT AR B
KEEIR 2 SNERS BB
S

HEERERBMETEE RIS
HUTEZRARIZBEERE
& ;

BRERBEARA 2 EEFER
BERLIBMBR R EERR
EEAELBRARESMER -
UEHRMEER Z A& LSRR M
W E - FFER AP
°

RRERER Y ATERA=IER
BRHE - HHATERRAY S
SERRIT -

Stock price &
Exercise price I8
Risk free rate 4 [ [ 1 =R
Discount rate AR &
Dividend yield % 22
Time to expiration FI AR RS
Stock price volatility & ER R

Borrowing rate of issuer

BITABEEXR

31 March
2013

31 March
2012
—E——F

=A=+—H

—2-=F
=A=t-H

HK$0.997 7T
HK$0.207%& 7T
0.215%
11.444%

0%

1.95 years 4
56.61%
11.44%
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

2013
—E-=F
HK$’000
TET

The movement of the convertible loan
notes for the year is set out below:
Balance at beginning of the year
Fair value change (credited)/charged to
the profit or loss

Gain on translation of convertible loan
notes denominated in a foreign
currency into the functional currency

Exchange adjustment arising on
translation of functional currency to
presentation currency and charged to
other comprehensive income

Balance at end of the year

Analysed for reporting as:
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Difference between carrying amount and
maturity amount:
Convertible loan notes at fair value
Amount payable on maturity

None of the convertible loan notes had been converted into
ordinary shares of the Company during the years ended 31

March 2013 and 2012.

ARBREREERFRZ
2EHINWT :
FHEEA
BBz GGEA), kR 2

NEEZE)
MR E SRR INE
BRERNEERTEZ
Wz (725)
BREGEEBAZY
BHSREE A 2 [ H EE
I B H b2 RS kR

213,889

(24,031)

725

FREH 189,858
DIT2FRAT -
JERBAE -
mENaE 189,858

189,858

FREESEZIHEER 2
R
HRERERER A TE
DR RN SRR

189,858
200,000

(10,142)

28. AR ERERE(E)

2012
—R—=—%
HK$'000
TR

201,186

12,703

(8,457)

8,457

213,889

213,889

213,889

213,889
200,000

13,889

HE_Z—=FRK_ZF——_F=A
St BIEFETETREERZE

EREESRAARNR 2 TR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ # 3% 2% Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=-A=t—HLEFECGTEBITREMN)

29. PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION 29. E8Ff - A R EBIERARE

AND ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

The Group AEE
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 April 2012 N-ZE—=—€mA—AH 1,951
Exchange difference ME 5 =R 8
At 31 March 2013

Mining activities may result in land subsidence, which could
lead to losses to the residents of the mining areas. Pursuant
to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required to
make compensation payments to the residents for their losses
resulting from land subsidence, or to restore the mining areas
back to certain acceptable conditions.

Under existing legislation, management believes that there are
no probable liabilities that will have a material adverse effect
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.
The PRC government, however, has moved and may move
further towards the adoption of more stringent environmental
standards. Environmental liabilities are subject to considerable
uncertainty which affect the Group’s ability to estimate the
ultimate cost of remediation efforts. These uncertainties include:
(i) the exact nature and extent of the contamination at various
sites including, but not limited to, coal mines areas, whether
operating, closed or sold, (i) the extent of required cleanup
efforts, (iii) varying costs of alternative remediation strategies,
(iv) changes in environmental remediation requirements, and (v)
the identification of new remediation sites.

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental
clean up costs has been determined by management based on
their past experience and best estimate of future expenditure
by discounting the expected expenditures to their net present
value. However, in so far as the effect on the land and the
environment from current mining activities becomes apparent
in future periods, the estimate of the associated costs may
be subject to revision in the future. The amounts provided in
relation to close down, restoration and environmental clean
up costs are reviewed at least annually based upon the facts
and circumstances available at the time and the provisions are
updated accordingly.

R—E—=F=A=+—H 1,959

FEAE AL E UG - S <H
Rine v EREXIEX - REBET
BAH - AEREAEBEEERER
ZBRAERERELEE - 2Kk
BRib[R IAE ZE —E AR ©

BIBBITDAN - BEBHETE® L
E{n) A] RE 3 AN & [ B S AR sl AR 8 5
BEEERBMFEZEME - Al - #
BB RN B e — S E R &
BZIRRIEE - RIREEH RAER
B2THTREZ YAy ErEE
B RERBEHERRZEN - bE
THEEFEZBE (R TRHME (81
BRRERREEF EEFAIBELHEZ
B EEHRSEZMHEREE ; (i)
FERMBEIECZREE  (i)ISEE
fth AT A3 BRI RE 2 AN ¢ (V)RR
HERECENR  RWIEEREX
EX RS e 2t B o

BEEBEREBRFBELR  UWLY
AKX 2 &EHBE - U ERHAX
RRREEBAFEMETHE - BF
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30. DEFERRED TAX

30. IEIERIIE
AEM
UTAERRA T ERELCHERRE
(BE)ARERAREPHRBER

The Group
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movement thereof during the current and prior

reporting periods. LEHARS > 85 E) o
Accelerated
tax  Intangible
depreciation assets  Taxlosses  Inventories Total
MEREHE ErEE HEER %K s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TE#L T TAL ThL TEL
A1 April 2011 RZE——FMA-A 50 24,069 (50) - 24,069
Exchange realignment B AR - 946 - - 946
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (50 - 50 - =
Charge to consolidated statement of REEE 2 GRE 2 ENERNG
comprehensive income for the year - 8,103 - - 8,103
At 31 March 2012 W-E-——%=fA=1-H = 33,118 - - 33,118
Exchange realignment 5 A% - 47 = 21) %
Credit to consolidated statement SAREE e 2 ElEE
of comprehensive income for the year - (15,196) - (3,765) (18,961)
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=%=A=1-H - 17,969 - (3,789) 14,183
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial REMBARR TR
position:
2013 2012
—E—=4F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net deferred tax asset recognised in the  A4RA BATSHR I R FERHY
consolidated statement of financial BIERIHE BT E
position (3,786) -
Net deferred tax liability recognised in RERE TR R FER R
the consolidated statement of financial  EFERSIE & (&FE
position 17,969 33,118
14,183 33,118
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ # 3R 3% Fff &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

31.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$845,000 (2012: HK$792,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profits streams. Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is payable
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the accumulated taxable profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$49,254,000 (2012: HK$41,629,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group disposed
of the entire equity interests of ten subsidiaries of the Group
through sale to an independent third party.

The ten subsidiaries disposed were Teamright Holdings
Limited, Artfield Manufacturing Company Limited, Lens Trading
Inc., Collins Development Limited, William Design Limited,
Bessemer International Limited, Artfield Trading (Hong Kong)
Limited, Right Time Group Inc., Wehrle Timepiece International
Limited and Wehrle Uhrenfabrik GmbH.

All these subsidiaries were engaged in investment holding or
were dormant during the year ended 31 March 2012.

30. IEFZERIIA (HR)

31.

R-B—=F=A=+—H8  &x&H
Z RB) AT IR R /2845,000/8 T (=
T— 4% : 792,000/ 7T) 7] F{ELT 4
RAGH A o R EEATERI B 12 2 5 A
HR - FRE RS B R RRT
HMBEE - BUAEEAERBGEE -

BEFRCERESREEE BT
TNF—A—HE  BRAtEEER
A BEE T R ER 2 ) 1 2R 2 A% S
Uera 0%t o BEp A BB A R R&t
T8 ) ) FE A 2 B F & §E49,254,000
BT (—Z— =4 : 41,629,000/ 7T )
RERE I IS MR ME L IR E R TR -
Th R 7 62 [ RE 120 o 4B B T S 2 B 2 B
M BEBEBEEREERYEBRTA
AR o

B A A
RBE-T-——£ZA=+—AL&
B ARERANET—2BES
7 EAEE R E AT 2
i -

Bk

B &2 +HHE AR ATeamright
Holdings Limited « Hi5 B £ 5 R
A Al ~ Lens Trading Inc.  Collins
Development Limited + William Design
Limited + Bessemer International Limited
- HHE S (FB)ERAQA - Right
Time Group Inc. * Wehrle Timepiece
International Limited & Wehrle Uhrenfaborik
GmbH -

REBE-_ZT——F=—A=+—HItF

B ZEWBARZHMNERERER
EBNEEAY -
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31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 31. HEMBARE (&)

The cash flow and the carrying amount of net assets of the

REERMAELIBARZESR

subsidiaries sold at the date of disposal were as follows: EREEFERAEBENT :
Amounts
derecognised
KRILTERSH
HK$’'000
F&T
Property, plant and equipment W - B MR -
Trade and other receivables JE UL E TR R B At FE UK 165
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEEE 79
Trade and other payables e &R R E MR R (2,888)
Tax payable FE TR ©6)
Deferred taxation IRIETIIR -
Net liabilities disposed of P& aEF5E (2,650)
Exchange reserve R 1,509
Less: Ve (1,141)
Consideration of disposals HERE -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AU (1,141)
Cash consideration received BYFESRE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of It EReRREEEIER (79)
Net cash outflow arising on disposals HEEEZHESRLFRE (79
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt 7R &R K5t
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-—=F=F=t—HLEFEUTETREN)

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
a) Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the significant related party
transactions are as follows:

32. BEALIXRS

a)

LR ER
([ BIER

China Sonangol International
Limited (“CSI”) (note a)
— rental expenses (note b)

Notes:
a) CSl is an intermediate holding company of the Company.

b) Operating lease commitment for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease with CSI
was amounted to HK$450,000 (2012: HK$360,000).

b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

HARAT
1) (KfsEa)
— 2% (o)

b)

Short-term benefits 2R A
Post-employment benefits BERR 12 4B A

The remuneration of directors was determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Bréza W ig R H A B0 Frik s
BN BERAEATRZIAN ¢
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
480
BiaE
a THREBARNARZENER

AR«

b) 1R 35 81 22 AR B R 5T 32 2 A Al
S EHE 2 KRR EN KA
gﬁﬁ%ﬁL%Q%W@ﬂf

— 4 : 360,000/87T) °

FTEEEASHE

FRAEERHMETEEEEKE

ZEBAT

2013 2012
—E—=F T F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
2,491
45

2,536

EFFMeFMEZES2RE
EFZEARBRRTIGBBKRE

):Eo
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—-HLFECGCTEITREM)

33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
The Group leases certain of its offices, warehouse and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Lease for
properties are negotiated for a term ranging from one to four
years and rental are fixed.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

33.
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Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 March
1995 (the “Old Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to directors and eligible employees and

expired on 20 March 2005.

As a result of the amendments of Chapter 17 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) on 1 September 2001,
certain terms of the Old Scheme are no longer in compliance
with the Listing Rules and the Company can no longer grant
any further options under the Old Scheme without being
in breach of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company
terminated the Old Scheme and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”), which was approved in the
Company’s annual general meeting on 28 August 2003, for
the purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
participants.

Except that no further options may be granted under the Old
Scheme subsequent to its termination, all the other provisions
of the Old Scheme will remain in force so as to give effect to
the exercise of all outstanding options granted under the Old
Scheme prior to 1 September 2001 and all such options will
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with the provisions
of the Old Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt 7%k & Ms

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34. BBIRMERTEI(E)

According to the New Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, any technical, financial, and legal professional
advisors who have contributed to the Group, to subscribe for
shares in the Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot
of share options granted.

Options granted should be accepted within 28 days from the
date of grant. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of adoption of the New Scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no remained
outstanding share options granted under both the New
Scheme and Old Scheme (2012: Nil). The total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company or any of their associates in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Total number of securities available for issue under the share
option scheme as at 31 March 2013 was 229,612,075 shares
(2012: 229,612,075 shares), which represented 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company at 31 March 2013
(2012: 30%). The maximum number of shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme and any other option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may be
exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the option. The exercise price is determined
by the directors and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and (i)
the nominal value of the share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k M=k

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—-HLFECGCTEITREM)

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The New Scheme will remain effective until it is terminated by

resolution in a general meeting at any time.

During the year ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012,
no option was granted under the New Schemes to directors,

employees or consultants of the Group.

There was no outstanding share option as at 1 April 2011, 31

March 2012 and 31 March 2013.

35. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employee’s salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage of the
salaries of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees, are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
year to which they are related and represented the amount of

contributions payable by these subsidiaries to this scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$774,000 (2012:
HK$524,000) represents contributions payable to the schemes

by the Group in respect of the current financial year.

34.

35.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B f& R &R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the

HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2013 and which have not been adopted in

these financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to

HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 7

Amendments to

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-
2011 Cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities!
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9

and Transition Disclosures?

Consolidated Financial Statements,

HKFRS 10, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
HKFRS 11 and Interests in Other Entities: Transition
HKFRS 12 Guidance!

Amendments to

Investment Entities?

HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements!
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements!
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities!
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement!
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits!

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)

Amendments to

Separate Financial Statements!

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures!
Presentation of ltems of Other

HKAS 1 Comprehensive Income*
Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
HKAS 32 Liabilities?

HK (IFRIC) - Int 20

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine!
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B #& 3R &R M s

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—-HLFECGCTEITREM)

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36. RBZ=-ZE—=F=ZA=+—

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued
in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include:

° amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements

° amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment; and

o amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

Amendments to HKAS 1

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as
at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement of
financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that
an entity is required to present a third statement of financial
position only when the retrospective application, restatement
or reclassification has a material effect on the information in
the third statement of financial position and that related notes
are not required to accompany the third statement of financial
position.

Amendments to HKAS 16

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified
as property, plant and equipment when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and as
inventory otherwise. The directors do not anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 16 will have a significant effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

142 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED BB & REX AR AT

BLEFEERAMEBERERZ

1|/ ET AT EAIRRBZEE

5"/ = (nﬁ)

L RIB—=F—H-Bsiz&mmRzF
SRR AR

2 RZZB—MFE—-A—HAsizBRRZF
FEHAR AR

@ RZZE—hF—A—HslzERRZF
EEARAER o

2 RZT——FtA—HsizEBRRZF
JEEARIAERK o

TE-ZHEABEGZERMBRE
BUAZFFNEZF——FBHAZE
B

BERUBREEN _ZEZNE_F
——FREHzFRENE  BREHUSRA
AR BHEENNZIRER] - ZF
BTN —F—=F—F—B=2&HA
MV FREBRAER - B BREE
AMERTARLE -

s BAEAGHEAFIRZETAZE
AU FHHR

o  FHAGERFIRZEFTAY
X BERRE R

o  FHAGFEREIRZEFT AL
BTA: 2% -

TREENEIRZMBITER
FEGEAFIRRELEYEAS
SARERES  RTEPEIIRBAHE
PEH DR ER A2 E—EH
R RE 2 B SR R (B = (0 B 75K
R) > ARG EUF 1R ZIERTA
BB BERENEHER  ZIIKRA
KB DL E = DI BNI R
EMBERTER  HAZNE=N
HBHRRE - BE=OHBRRAKE
AREP AR AR AT

EEEHENE16HEZEFTAR
é%@ﬁﬁ%%m%z1i$ﬁ%’
THH - BEIERERPRE—
BREEEBETENFEI6HRETY
E & %mm% RIS A
%% WEK&E  GRIESEATT
=1 i%l?ﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁ+m%m
KRBT RN e AEBNIRE M H
WFELEBRTE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B f& R &R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued
in June 2012 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and transaction
costs of an equity transaction should be accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The directors
anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group
has already adopted this treatment.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the related
disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and
“simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement or
similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within
those annual periods. The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However, the
amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective
application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities in the future.

36.

RBE-_ESE—=f=A=1+-
HIEFEEEMGEERERZ
&5] ~ FETERRREBZ B
-2 1¢-))
CE-—CEABENZEEHBRE
A —EBEAZ-_E——SBYZE
FE B ()

EHG A B2 X BT A
EAGHEAERE BT RES -
iR T EEE AFEDRZ TSR
ARBREZ S 2 X GRAE - ERES
AEH RS 125 FTER A - &
NREEEY BN AEEELEE
WHEEEFR AUt EBSENE
L IEETA  BARUAEE 45
BT RRERTE -

FRVMBREENETRETRERE
AR ZETLEHMEEREME
Bz iR R R E

BE G ERFEI2R 2 BRI A RF AR
HHEMEERCRABREEHRL
BEERMBRE - LERETEEIRE
BANEE LA RBIIT 2 i | &
[FIRRRMEE |2

BEPBRELERNETRETARE
ERARABABHMAT 2R —F
BREEGEIBULFAET 2SR T
B R B SR N AR 2 B (A
mBRRE ) B2 ER o

BERP B MEERE 7R ERTAAE
AR —_F—=F—A—HBHxX2R&MAA
ZFERE R ZEFERE T R
- WEITEEFAAALRARAE
BT - AR - BB ERIFEI2
BEATAR —_Z—HF-A—BAxZ
BFERFEHRTELER - BREW
FEA -

EXHNREALSE A EREI2

BRBAMBRELENETR ZIER]
BERHRANEAEEREER

TRABFLESHE -

Annual Report 2013 &3 143
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW  36.

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B f& R &R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREMN)

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ending 31 March 2016 may have a significant impact
on the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities. It is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date
of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes
a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC) —
Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions
by Venturers will be withdrawn upon the effective date of
HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified
as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast,
under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements:
jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW  36.

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance
on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating
to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application
permitted provided all of these standards are applied at the
same time.

The application of HKFRS 10 is not expected to change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities. However, it may in the future
result in investees being consolidated which would not have
been consolidated under the Group’s existing policies or vice
versa.

The Group has not completed its assessment of the full impact

of adopting HKFRS 11 and therefore its possible impact on the
Group’s results and financial position has not been quantified.
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception
to consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity,
except where the subsidiaries provide services that relate
to the investment entity’s investment activities. Under the
amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is required to
measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair value through profit
or loss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be
met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

- obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional investment
management services;

- commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

- measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of
its investments on a fair value basis.

Conseqguential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have
been made to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with early application permitted. The directors anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March
2015 will have no effect on the Group.
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW  36.

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies
to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of the new
standard in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the financial year ending 31 March 2014 may affect certain
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting for
defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most
significant change relates to the accounting for changes in
defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The amendments
require the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations
and in fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence
eliminate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted under the previous
version of HKAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past
service costs. The amendments require all actuarial gains
and losses to be recognised immediately through other
comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset or
liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.
Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on plan
assets used in the previous version of HKAS 19 are replaced
with a ‘net-interest’ amount, which is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-—=F=A=t—HLEFEGTETREM)

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and require retrospective
application.

The Group has not completed its assessment of the full impact
of adopting revised HKAS 19 in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ending 31 March
2014 and therefore the possible impact on the Group’s results
and financial position has not been quantified.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement
of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and an income
statement is renamed as a statement of profit or loss.

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories in
the other comprehensive income section: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis. The amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012 and the directors anticipate
that the amendments to HKAS 1 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ending 31 March 2014. The presentation of items of other
comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW  36.

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 applies to waste removal costs that are
incurred in surface mining activity during the production
phase of the mine (“production stripping costs”). Under the
Interpretation, the costs from this waste removal activity
stripping which provide improved access to ore is recognised
as a non-current asset (stripping activity asset) when certain
criteria are met, whereas the costs of normal on-going
operational stripping activities are accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 2 Inventories. The stripping activity asset is
accounted for as an addition to, or as an enhancement of, an
existing asset and classified as tangible or intangible according
to the nature of the existing asset of which it forms part.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Specific transitional provisions
are provided to entities that apply HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 for the
first time. However, HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 must be applied to
production stripping costs incurred on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented. The directors anticipate that
the adoption of HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ending 31 March
2014 will have no effect to the Group’s financial statements as
the Group does not engage in such activities.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMAR

or the year ended 31 Marct

013 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BE—2 =S=-A=1t-HLEFEUUTEITREMN)

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set

out below.
RESULTS
2013
—E—=fF
HK$’000
FHx
TURNOVER EE S 165,041
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM mERAN(BR)

OPERATIONS 8,937
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBA B2 iz -
Net gain on deregistration of (RiEEUNGIE- 6z Ealilipod

subsidiaries W =
Finance costs BEKAK (23)
Change in fair value of convertible  AI#IREHZIE v

loan notes RFEEH 24,031
(Impairment loss)/reversal on BHEEZ(RE

intangible asset EE),/ #&E (49,928)
Impairment loss on goodwill e 2 REBE =
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBA(E1E),SEF (16,983)
Income tax credit (expense) Frigfism e (L) 6,803
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EER),/&mF (10,180)
Attributable to: FE1L
Owners of the Company RATHEA (9,101)
Non-controlling interests FEIEfR i RS -

(9,101)

AEERBEDEMRFEE AHES B
ERBEANSHEREREIINT

E 4
Year ended 31 March

BE=A=1+—HILLFE
2012 2011 2010 2009
—T-—F %% —T-FTF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHIT FHL
190,974 104,428 96,090 23,105
26,966 (18,413 (7,651) (14,822)
1,141 - - 3
- 408 - 2,618
- (19,845) (18,756) (16,640)
(12,703) (1,186) - -
39,733 (41,595) - -
- (15,085) (5,400) -
55,137 (95,696) (31,807) (28,841)
(11,420) 10,730 (2,163) 77
43,717 (84,966) (33,970) (28,764)
43,717 (84,105) (31,789 (28,764)
- (861) (2,181) -
43,717 (84,966) (33,970 (28,764)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥EREEURFZERERS

INTERESTS

Total assets

Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Net assets

At 31 March

MR=B=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
el T —F —T——% —T-FF _TFHhF
UEHOIN  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
FHT T FHT FHET FET
AR JUssire 460,292 390,997 543233 385,977
e fE sl (276,817)  (259,316)  (283,832)  (172,509)
AR s - (78,004) =
BEFE (i<ps 183,475 131,681 181,397 213,468
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